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Chairman's

MESSAGE ror 15

Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen,

It gives me great pleasure to deliver the key note address of
LIC (Nepal) Ltd. to all shareholders present here. On behalf
of the entire LIC family, | extend my greetings to you all and
a warm welcome to the 18" Annual General Meeting of Life
Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Ltd being conducted online.

| strongly believe that LIC (Nepal) Ltd. enjoys a robust
foundation in Nepalese Insurance Industry. We have
demonstrated our capabilities across products, customer
services and markets. LIC (Nepal) Ltd. intends to continue
to leverage this solid platform to achieve its aspirations and
deliver value to all our stakeholders. The confidence reposed
by you, the shareholders, has been a considerable source
of strength for us. Over the last 18 years, your Board has
also focused its efforts on fulfilling the trust reposed by the
shareholders, customers, stakeholders etc. The year 2075/76
witnessed the Company showing all round growth in various
financial parameters.

| wish to share with you that we could deliver as per our
commitments, despite a background of continuing market
volatility in the year 2075/76. It is my pleasure to report to you
that LIC (Nepal) Ltd. has been able to collect NRs. 4,228.35
million as First Premium Income by selling 1,89,320 Policies
in the financial year 2075/76. In terms of first premium
collected and policies sold, the Company showed a growth of
46.36% and 42.09% respectively. Our Market Share in Nepal
is 13.76% in FPI in respect of Regular New Business and our
new business persistency ratio remained at 99.96%. As at
the end of Ashad 2076, we are servicing 7,35,745 policies.
Due to favorable political and economic situation of Nepal, we
were looking forward to have better growth in New Business
performance of the Company during the financial year 2076/77
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too but the spread of COVID 19 has impacted the business of
the Company during the last six months of that fiscal year.

Similarly in the year 2075/76, Life Fund of the Company has
grown to new heights of NRs 53837.31 million. There has been
a growth of 27.48% in Life Fund while the total investments
have increased by 23.65% in the year. The income from
investments has risen by 21.92% in the last fiscal year. All the
funds have been invested in Nepal as per the guidelines set
by Insurance Board (Beema Samiti) of Nepal and efforts are
being made to get the maximum advantage of higher returns
on investments from the market, in order to maximize the
benefits to our esteemed customers.

The Company’s Actuarial Valuation for 2075/76 (from Shrawan
1, 2075 to Ashaad end, 2076) has been approved. After the
Valuation, the Company has shown a net profit of NRs 310.30
million under Shareholders Account. The Board of Directors
has proposed 10.53% of existing paid-up capital as dividend
out of this profit and the same will be apportioned towards
bonus share of 10%, 0.53% cash dividend for adjustment
against tax liabilities on dividend declared to our valued
shareholders. The Board has also proposed to increase the
Authorized Capital, Issued Capital & Paid-up Capital of the
Company to NRs.2,211 Million.

Again, the Company has set benchmarks for excellent servicing
standards in the industry by achieving zero outstanding in
settlement of survival benefit and death claims. The fact that
99% of these claims have been settled before the due date
adds more shine to this achievement. Altogether the Company
has paid over NRs. 3,399.94 million as claim payments in the
last fiscal. As on date, the Company delivers its products and
services through 61 outlets manned by 200 full-time employees
across the entire nation. This year too, we hope to increase our
presence even in farthest areas of the country keeping financial
viability in mind. The Company has strong field force of total
42,496 Agents across the nation for procuring New Business
and extending after sales services.

The crowning glory of all has been the 1SO 9001:2015
certification received by the Company making it the first
Life Insurance Company in Nepal since 2068 and the
same is renewed this year too, vindicating the mark of the
international standards being maintained and the continuation
of professionalism in our sales as well as service operations. |
am further happy to inform you that by leveraging information
technology, LIC (Nepal) Ltd. is providing easy and quick
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service to our valued customers. | interpret the positive
performance of our share price also as a strong vote of
confidence in our Company. | am happy to share with you that
your Company has been honored with the title of ‘Best Brand
Leadership Awards, 2019 in Kathmandu. Detailed review of
the Company’s performances is placed separately in the report
of the Board of Directors.

At the end, on behalf of the Board | place on record its gratitude
to the shareholders and customers for their continued support,
patronage and goodwill. Similarly, | would like to thank and
express our sincere appreciation to the honorable Government
of Nepal, Ministry of Finance, Nepal Rastra Bank, Insurance
Board, Office of Company Registrar, Securities Board of
Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Limited, CDS and Clearing Ltd
and all the other departments of the government for the help,
guidance and encouragement given to the Company from time
to time. Our Actuary, Auditors both statutory and internal and
other business associates also deserve our appreciation for
supporting and guiding the Company.

Members of the Board have been a source of strength through
their continuous monitoring and guidance to the Company
and | would like to thank them. Before closing my remarks, |
would like to extend my sincere appreciation for the dedicated
services rendered by the present team of employees and field
force at all levels.

Ladies and Gentlemen, | once again extend a warm welcome
to you all. Thank you very much for your time and attention.

M. R. Kumar
Chairman

9t March 2021
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Respected Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen,

We, the Board of Directors are pleased to greet and welcome all
the shareholders present in this 18" Annual General Meeting of
Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Ltd.

Hope that you have all gone through the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company of financial year 2075/76 (2018/19).
We now present the report of the Board of Directors for the fiscal
year 2075-76 for discussion and approval. This is in compliance
with the provisions of Section 109 of the prevailing Companies
Act, 2063.

Nature of Business

The Company is engaged in the business of Life Insurance in
Nepal under the regulations of Beema Samiti and prevailing laws
of the land.

Economic Scenario

The financial year 2075/76 saw satisfactory economic growth rate
and inflation remained benign. The remittances through foreign
employment, agriculture and tourism were good throughout the
year. Investment and industrial activities increased due to reliable
and regular power supply. The interest rates on fixed deposits
fluctuated in between 9.50 % to 13.25%. The Company has
been able to show 46.36% growth in the first premium income,
27.48% growth in total life fund, 23.65% growth in investments
and 21.92% growth in income from investments in the financial
year 2075/76. This could be possible because of the prudent
financial management, hard work of employees & agents and the
continued faith the people of Nepal have in the Company.

TIAINID! FRacdba Overview of Performance

frreragewT o=t ge Number of Policies sold.
Year 2071/72 2072/73 2073/74 2074/75 2075/76
No of Policies 1,49,796 1,46,713 1,78,511 1,33,239 1,89,320

Y FFEIHHT R0t NG HETAEFIEh] el i SHIC@H!
HEAT ©,34, 0¥ Y bl T STHHRT TS =Te-a |

The Company has 7,35,745 policies in its book as at the end of
Ashad 2076.

T e STFTHT First Premium Income
Year 2071/72 2072/73 2073/74 2074/75 2075/76
FPI (In NRs Millions) 1819.18 2265.20 2633.49 2888.95 4228.35

M. o4/ 0% HT FHITHICT FIH HfHIeH ATRHMT %%.35%
T sffurere fosht deamT ¥R.0%% A ghaat e MR | 79
Aot 3V SATew Ui SR & :3,33%.%2 T B |

We are happy to inform you that the Company could register
46.36% growth in FPI and 42.09% growth in number of policies
as seen above in the just ended Financial Year 2075-76. The
average premium per policy is at NRs 22,334.41. The total



qQr s Jiier ufdaeT
SIS 3o3¥eA HURE (Aure) ffAde

FFIRT 3T.E. 014/ % AT FeT SHTYCHATIT . 2,32% . 25HIS
T Hehot T Tthel U ey STHehRT TS aE- |

AT, R09% /99 Y fasmar aFaEq

'LIC

\\ ki’ //
N7

premium collected by the Company during 2075/76 stands at NRs
13,411.66 Million.

Performance in Financial Year 2076/77

2075/76 2076/77 Growth Rate
No. of Policy 189320 150629 (20.43)%
FPI(In Millions) 4228.35 3752.97 (11.24)%
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From the table above, we observe that there is de-growth in FPI
and NOP. The business of entire financial sector was adversely
affected during last six months of the fiscal year 2076/77 due to
COVID 19 pandemic.

Operational Overview

The Company operates through its 61 branches at present, which
are spread across the country. As at the end of Ashad 2076, the
Company has 200 staff members, three of whom are expatriates
deputed from India with ample experience & knowledge in life
insurance marketing and administration, while all others are from
Nepal itself. The top executives of the Company, ably supported
by the Board, guide the employees and field force, and are easily
accessible at any time. Several training and handholding sessions
are conducted throughout the year, in addition to periodic reviews,
in order to enhance the skills of the employees and agents so
that they become vibrant and responsive in addition to remaining
competitive in the market.

Changes in the Board of Directors

Shri Mukesh Kumar Gupta has been appointed as Member of
Board of Directors replacing Shri B. Venugopal after the 17
Annual General Meeting.

Factors Influencing Incomes

The lack of avenues for long term investment continues to be
the major cause of concern throughout. The rate of interest
on investment fluctuated unevenly throughout the year. In this
situation too, the Company was able to take full advantage of
the best prevailing interest rates from investments and could do
most of the investments for the longest available term during the
year. The P/L Account of financial year 2075/76 shows a Net
profit of NRs. 31,03,02,353. The cost of operations has been kept
under strict control and efforts are being made to bring it down
further without affecting our operations. All these would help in
creating long term goodwill & result in bringing more value to our
shareholders and policyholders in the days to come.

Auditors

Mr. Madan Niraula of M/S Madan Niraula & Co. is engaged as
our statutory auditor till the ensuing AGM. He is eligible to offer
himself for reappointment and based on the recommendations of
the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors intend to reappoint
him for the financial year 2076/77 (2019/20) with an increased
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fee of NRs 4,12,000/- + VAT. Mr. P.L. Shrestha of M/S P.L.
Shrestha & Co. had been our internal auditor last year. The Board
of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has
reappointed him for the financial year 2076/77 as well with a fee
of NRs. 8,50,000/- +VAT.

Auditor’s Report

The opinion of the Auditors on the accounts and systems of the
Company is appended to this report. The Auditors have opined that
the accounts and records of the Company have been maintained
properly and that the investments are made in accordance with
the laws of the land. This gives us ample confidence about our
professional working and well laid systems.

Forfeiture of Shares
Since the inception of the Company, no shares belonging to
anyone have been forfeited.

Life Fund

As atthe end of financial year 2075/76, the life fund of the Company
stood at NRs 53,837.31 Million as against NRs. 42,233.44 Million
at the end of last financial year 2074/75. This means the life fund
has grown at the rate of 27.48 % for the period.

Life Fund
L] - ] - - - -
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Investments

The total investments of the Company as at the end of F.Y. 2075/76
stood at NRs 45,826.84 Million as against NRs 37,061 Million
as at the end of F.Y. 2074/75. There is an increase of 23.65%.
All investments have been done strictly as per the guidelines and
rules existing in the country, as well as, as per directions of the
Board of Directors and directives of the Regulator (Beema Samiti)
from time to time. The investments have been made in Govt.
Bonds, Development Bonds of Nepal Rastra Bank, Fixed deposits

I S EaEn e




qQr s Jiier ufdaeT
SIS SR Sl (Aaret) ffAee

farehTer S T BIEAT FrOHIEERT Ted! WTaTes, TR
IR T Tesoiagedr T TUhT & | 99 Tehieh! fareeryor
A FFOHI T8 a9 STRAT T TiahetdT 22.23% T
Figat aTfeet T & | HEIHTT IUCTeY SHIST THAATS TRTHT Tt
Tyl ewer giferd T Seaaw wfawa fa TemeeaT wrs Ty
T JATEd |

AAADERERT AR BRISR

iR af Rowu/ s AT YW HREHT Afywd S HEEE
AT &g U B, IETATS Ta3UehT TTTEfHe T 3% HeTelhe®alls
Y& TNUhT 33k YT aTeeh A TeT arafeerd faxfier shrieme
HodTeteh T fSTehT ATAGTERT ) TeraT Teehl & |

3NFeTen I sAGIAS [

FAT.T. 09K/ 6% AT TS U TSI STEHAT R¢.23% T
gig 1 Frofier FeT SR &. 2,¢0%. 21y FUS TET AT H
SR T THwaT Re. 24 % TS &1 | 3th A&, HT I HF1ehr
T AT T TN 2R.90% Wl & |

Jdlelcd a9 UEIRIBIRIGRGTS JIRED! fThion

FUTIRT FHTIER 3T, 064/ 0% AT HITHIH THAHEE,
TG FERRT AHT qUT =T USTHIRHEEATS ST &, 3,0
3,84, ¥ R\ YT TREERT 3 |

ATEE qAT TR EEATs WA Ut T faawor

I : LI c
\\'- /73
N

N

with various Commercial Banks, Development Banks, Finance
Companies, Gitizen’s Investment Trust, and in Preference Shares
and Debentures of Banks and reputed public limited Companies
and in the equities of reputed public limited Companies. Due to
strict investment norms followed by the Company, the investment
income has shown an increase of 21.92% in the just concluded
financial year even though the market conditions were not so
conducive. It is our endeavor to invest our surplus in a prudent
manner keeping the safety of funds uppermost in our mind, but
without losing sight of higher returns.

Financial Transactions by Directors

During the financial year 2075/76, the Company has not entered
into any financial transactions with either the Directors of the
Company or their relatives in any manner whatsoever except
payment of salary to the CEQ, who is also a Director and payment
of sitting fees to all the Directors.

Income and Management Expenses

The total income of the Company during the year was NRs
18,746.55 million, showing a growth of 28.15% over that of
the last year, with income from investment registering 21.92%
growth during the year. The total management expense ratio of
the Company is 19.70%.

Payment to Directors and other Executives

A total of NRs 3,09,95,425 have been paid to Directors, CEO and
other Executives of the Company as per laid down rules in the
year 2075/76.

Statement of Remuneration of Directors and Executives is as under:

Name Designation Amount Paid (NRs.) | Type of Payment
Mr. V. K. Sharma Ex-Chairman 12,000 | Sitting Fee*

Mr. Hemant Bhargava Ex-Chairman 24,000 | Sitting Fee*

Mr. M. R. Kumar Chairman 12,000 | Sitting Fee*

Mr. B. Venugopal Director 90,000 | Sitting Fee*

Mr. Ashok Kumar Agrawal Director 60,000 | Sitting Fee

Mr. V.K. Kukreja Director 90,000 | Sitting Fee*

Mr. Kumar Keshar Bista Director 1,00,000 | Sitting Fee

Mr. Abhijit Ghosh Dastidar Director/Off. CEQ

60,000 | Sitting Fee
1,05,91,785 | Salary and other amenities

Mr. Sudhir Sagar Manager IT 58,85,738 | Salary and other amenities
Mr. Laxmi Prasad Das CEO 54,38,141 | Salary and other amenities
Mr. T. Burnawal Deputy CEQ 23,40,693 | Salary and other amenities
Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Aggarwal CT0 62,91,068 | Salary and other amenities

Total

3,09,95,425

Jete® AR St sfiar fment FHiaries quh g1 3% Soh
TTEE TRTHeRT AT ST TRueT & |

* These payments are made to L.I.C. of India as these Directors
are employees of LICI.
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Purchase of Property
No property has been purchased or sold by the Company during
the year as per section 141 of the Companies Act, 2063, except
purchase of cars for the use of officers as per the scheme
approved by the Board.

Valuation of Life Fund

As per the instruction of Beema Samiti, a Life Insurance Company
is required to undertake valuation of its funds by an Actuary on
yearly basis. Accordingly, an annual valuation result for 2075/76
has shown a surplus of NRs 6,16,70,25,732 out of which NRs 35,
79, 06,375 is distributed to the Policyholders as dividend & these
figures are reflected in the financial statements for 2075/76.

Certification of the actuary regarding solvency of the Company
and its capital adequacy up to 2075/76 is appended to the report.

Bonus to Policyholders
The Bonus rates (per 1000 sum assured per year) of the Company
for 2075/76 declared are as below:

Policy Term (year) Bonus Rate(NRs.)
Endowment (including Jeevan Anand) 5t019 66
Endowment (including Jeevan Anand) 20to 24 70
Endowment (including Jeevan Anand) 25 and above 80
Dhan Brishti 10 and 15 66
Money Back 15 66
Money Back 20 67
Money Back 25 68
Premium Term Bonus
Jeevan Tarang 10 66
15 68
20 77
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Dividend & Bonus for shareholders

With the closing of the books after the inclusion of the valuation
results for 2075/76, the Company has shown NRs 310.30
Million as net profit in the Shareholders account. The Board
of Directors proposes 10.53% of the existing paid up capital
amounting to NRs 21,15,78,947 as dividend out of this profit to
our valued Shareholders, and from this dividend, 10% as Bonus
Share, 0.53% as cash dividend (including tax liability) on the
total dividend so declared are to be apportioned. The Board of
Directors also proposes to increase the Authorized Share Capital,
Issued Share Capital & Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company to
NRs 2,211 Million.

Award

We are happy to share with you that LIC Nepal has been honored
with the title ‘Nepal’s Best Brand Leadership Award, 2019’ in
Kathmandu.
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New Products

The Company launched 2 new products in this financial year.
“Jeevan Saathi” endowment plan which gives coverage to both
husband and wife was launched in 01.01.2019 and “Dhan Brishti”
3 year’s money back policy was launched in 14.03.2019. Both
have become popular plans of LIC Nepal.

Customer Setrvice

Networking, Premium Payment & Mobile SMS

The Company has developed a well-versed modern IT system and
all branches have been linked with the online networking system.
LIC Nepal has successfully introduced “Anywhere Premium
Payment” system. It is now possible for a customer to pay the
premium in any branch of LIC Nepal irrespective of where he/
she has taken the policy from. Likewise, the Company has been
delivering “Mobile SMS Information Service” and “Online Portal”
service through website to inform the policyholders regarding
the policy completions, premiums dues and premiums received
details and also for payment of policy loans, surrenders, survival
benefits & maturity claims.

Claims

During the fiscal year 2075/76, the Company has settled 768
death claims for an amount of NRs 257.21 Million. The total death
claims settled since inception are 5,102 for which we have paid
NRs 1,261.4 Million. We are happy to inform you that the Company
has achieved zero outstanding death and survival benefit claims
which is an unparalleled achievement in the entire industry. All the
maturity and survival benefit claims of the Company due in the
financial year 2075/76 were settled in the fiscal year itself which
is a unique feat in the Life Insurance Market of Nepal. The total
claim amount (for Death, Maturity, Survival Benefit, Surrender
and other claims) paid during the year is NRs 3,399.94 Million.

Other Marketing Activities

During the year of review, the Company recruited 3,179 new agents.
As at the end of Ashad 2076, we had 42,496 agents on roll out of
whom 5,650 have contributed to the business of the Company.
During the financial year 2075/76, 368 Agents have become
Centurions and 209 Agents have qualified to be the member
of prestigious MDRT-2020 club of insurance professionals. A
continuous exercise is being undertaken to enhance the selling
skills of the agents, with refresher trainings, by providing them
with literature on marketing and allied subjects and keeping them
engaged through various innovative competitions.

Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors held regular meetings as per the prescribed
rules. Six meetings of Board of Director's were held in the FY
2075/76. In addition to policy matters, the Board also provides
strategic direction, ensures financial discipline and accountability,
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and also ensures protection of interest of the policy holders and
other stakeholders. The Board of Directors strictly acts as per
the terms laid out in the Insurer's Corporate Good Governance
Directive, 2075 issued by Beema Samiti.

Share purchased by Directors

During the financial year 2075/76, neither Directors nor Officers
of the Company have purchased any shares of the Company and
they have not been involved in any transactions related thereto.

Information/Suggestion from Shareholders

With our functioning being open and transparent, suggestions
from shareholders are always welcomed. We would be delighted
to receive suggestions from your goodselves, for furthering the
growth of the Company and would definitely give due consideration
to these suggestions.

Any other matter to be disclosed

Apart from the above-mentioned facts, there are no other
mandatory disclosures by the Company in accordance with any of
the existing laws of Nepal.

Expression of Gratitude

The Board of Directors acknowledges with gratitude the support
received from the honourable Government of Nepal, the Ministry
of Finance, Nepal Rastra Bank, Beema Samiti, Securities Board
of Nepal, Office of Company Registrar, Nepal Stock Exchange
Limited, CDS & Clearing Limited and all other concerned
authorities. The Board of Directors would also like to acknowledge
the guidance and help received from the various departments of
LIC of India. The Board also places on record its gratitude to
the Shareholders and Policyholders of the Company, who have
reposed their faith, trust and confidence in the Company by their
continued patronage.

The Board of Directors would like to thank all the marketing
intermediaries and all the members of staff of the Company for
their unstinted support and hard work without which the Company
would not have scaled these heights. Our gratitude is also for our
Consultant Actuaries, Chartered Accountants and Auditors for
their support and guidance, in maintaining the highest standards
of corporate excellence. The Board of Directors and the Company
sincerely solicit the continued support and patronage of the public
of Nepal.

Thank you once again.

Board of Directors
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GPO Box : B262, Kathmandu-32, Nepal
Chartered Accountants E-mail : madanniravla@gmail com

Independent Auditor's Report
To The Shareholders’ of Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Stitements of Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) L., (hereinafrer
referred to as "the Company ") which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31s1
Ashad, 2076 (corresponding to 16 July 20019) and Statemsent of Profit or Loss and other
comprehensive Income. Stutement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies. In our opinion. except for the effect of matters mentioned in following 1-5 para, the
accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all maerial respects. the financial position of
the Company as at 315t Ashad. 2076 and its financial performance and its cash fows for the vear
then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standands (NFRS).

1. Premium earned during the vear has been accounted on cash basis.

L Outstanding claim has been provided at 113% which is based on regulatory requirement
rather than in compliance with NFRSs.

3. Agent Commission and medical expenses incurred by the company for acquisition of
business amounting to NRs. 1,528 853,205 has been accounted for in the year of expenses and
have not been deferred.

4. Swaff bonus as per Bonus Act 2030, being 10% of Profit before Bonus has been provided on
regulatory profit reporled separately, rather than profit based on NFRS complied linancials.
Had staff bonus provided as per NFRS based (inancials, shareholders equity would have been
reduced by Rs. 33,538,097 nel of tax,

3. A catastrophic reserve equal to 10% the regulatory profit is appropriated rather than of net
profit of Financial Statements prepared as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFES).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in sccordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
respensibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Institute of Chartered Accountants’ of Nepal (ICAN) Handbook of Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the fnancial statements and we have fullilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained are
sulTicient and npproprinte to provide a basis for our opinion.




Other Matter

Till the date the spread of COYID-1% has severely impacted many local economies around the
globe. In many countries, businesses are being forced to cease or limit operations for long or
indelinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans,
quarantines, social distancing. and closures of non-essential services have triggered significant
disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. The Company has
determined that these evenis are non-adjusting subsequent events. Accordingly. the financial
position and results of operations as of and for the vear ended 31" Ashad, 2076 have not been
adjusted o refleet their impact. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, ns well as
the effectiveness of government response remains unclear as on the date, It is not possible 1o
reliably estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the
financial position and results of the Company for future periods.

The actuarial valuation of liabilities for life policies in-force and policies where premium is
discontinued is the responsibility of the Company’s Appointed Actuary. which has been centified
by the Appointed Actuary in accordance with the regulations. Accordingly, we have relied upon
the Appointed Actuary’s certificate for forming our opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These maners were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whoele, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matiers. We have determined that, there are no
other key audit matters 1o communicate in our report.

Responsibilities  of  Management  and  These Charged  with  Governance  for
the Financial Statements,

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NAS, and for such internal control as management delermines (s necessary (o
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether
due to fraud or error. In preparing the flinancial statements. management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable; matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis ol accounting unless management either
imtends to liguidate the Company or o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company 's financial reporting
PrOCEss.




Responsibilities of Auwditor for the audit of Financials Statements:

Our objectives are 1o oblgin reasonable assurance about whether the linancial stotements, as a
whaole, are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o Fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordonce with NSAs will always detect a material
misstateniem when i exists, Misstatements ean arise from (raod of emor and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasenably be expected to influence the
ceonomic decistons of users tken on the bagis of these linancial statements.

Further report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On the basis of our examination, we would like to report that

The Statement of Financial Position as at 315t Ashad, 2076 (corresponding o 16 July 2009) and

Sttement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and

Statement of Chunges in Equity for the year then ended, and notes 1w the financial statements dealt

with by this report are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Sundands (NFRS),

Company Act 2063, and are in agreement with the books of sccount maintained by the Company.
1. We have not come across any action and situation that result in any action done by any

person of the company against the regulatory provisions or other prevalent laws or have

performed irregular job or have oceurred any damage or loss (o the company.

We have not come neross any action and sttuation that result in any action done against the

interest of Shareholders,

We have not come across any action and sitwstion that impair intemal control relevant to

the Company's operation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

. The operation of the Company has been found satisinetory.

]

Tad

-

Pariner

Date 207708, 14
Place  ; Kuihrinmdu
UDIN: 201213CAD019413wpT
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at Ashad 31, 2076

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 262,090,360 231,831,344
Intangible Assets 2 32,855 43,807
Financial assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 3 52,269,901,824 42,539,148,507
Financial asset at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 4 3,047,088,198 1,989,028,128
Other Financial Assets 5 1,137,519,502 760,982,206
Current Tax Assets (Net) 6 386,939,351 428,946,957
Other Assets 7 9,301,472 9,430,140
Cash and cash Equivalent 8 2,355,660,021 1,132,959,347
Total Assets 59,468,533,583 47,092,370,436
Equity
Share Capital 9 1,494,838,800 1,334,677,500
Share Premium 10 61,151,801 61,151,801
Reserve & Surplus 1
Catastrophic Reserves 111 267,313,366 236,283,131
Retained Earnings 11.2 1,475,087,623 1,377,936,521
Other Reserve 11.3 149,568,108 140,374,351
Total Equity 3,447,959,698 3,150,423,304
Liabilities
Insurance Contract Liabilities 12 54,530,057,213 42,771,297,287
Deferred Tax Liabilities 13 170,997,047 135,793,554
Other Financial Liabilities 14 837,266,542 453,354,645
Insurance Payables 15 155,243,643 222,183,009
Other Liabilities 16 79,387,106 192,749,557
Trade and other payables 17 247,622,334 166,569,080
Total Liabilities 56,020,573,885 43,941,947,132
Total Equity and Liabilities 59,468,533,583 47,092,370,436

The notes to the financial statements as set out on Notes 01 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Bipin Kumar Lal T. Burnawal L.P. Das Kumar Keshar Bista As per our report of even date

Asst . Manager (F&A) DCEQ CEO/Director Director CA . Madan Kumar Niraula
Partner

V. K. Kukreja Ashok Agrawal Mukesh Kumar Gupta M. R. Kumar For Madan Niraula & Co.

Director Director Director Chairman Chartered Accountants

Date: November 4, 2020
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2076

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
Ashad 31, 2076, NPR  Ashad 32, 2075, NPR
Gross Premium 18.1 13,411,656,786 10,458,762,810
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 18.2 (64,681,536) (51,493,747)
Net premiums 13,346,975,250 10,407,269,063
Fees and commission income 19 27,857,689 15,940,964
Investment income 20 4,171,583,608 3,417,146,092
Income from Policy Loan 21 884,665,438 572,283,424
Net realised gains and losses 22 49,576,247 46,209,531
Provision on loan losses 23 (446,822) (15,132,627)
Other income 24 217,836,063 123,637,026
Other revenue 5,351,072,223 4,160,084,410
Total Revenue (A) 18,698,047,473 14,567,353,473
Claims Payment 25.1 (3,399,937,244) (2,424,490,197)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 25.2 41,750,945 86,122,941
Net Claim Paid (3,358,186,299) (2,338,367,256)
Policy Acquisition Cost 26 (1,528,853,206) (1,162,226,064)
Net Service Charge Paid 27 (133,469,749) (104,072,690)
Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities 28 (11,676,016,116) (8,253,066,523)
Finance costs 29 - (14,671,170)
Other Operating and Administrative Expenses 30 (1,051,478,280) (773,187,234)
Other Expenses (14,389,817,351) (10,307,223,681)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses(B) (17,748,003,650) (12,645,590,937)
Profit before tax (A-B) 950,043,823 1,921,762,536
Tax Expense 31
Current Tax (648,714,005) (520,743,615)
Deferred Tax (4,557,638) 5,406,431
Profit For the Year 296,772,180 1,406,425,352
Basic earnings per share 32 19.85 105.38
Diluted earnings per share 32 19.85 105.38

The notes to the financial statements as set out on Notes 01 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Bipin Kumar Lal T. Burnawal L.P. Das Kumar Keshar Bista As per our report of even date

Asst . Manager (F&A) DCEO CEQ/Director Director CA . Madan Kumar Niraula
Partner

V. K. Kukreja Ashok Agrawal Mukesh Kumar Gupta M. R. Kumar For Madan Niraula & Co.

Director Director Director Chairman Chartered Accountants

Date: November 4, 2020
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2076
Particulars Year ended

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Ashad 31, 2076, NPR

<

Year ended

Ashad 32, 2075, NPR

Premium Income

13,411,656,786

10,458,762,810

Re-Insurance Commission Income 27,857,689 15,940,964
Other Direct Income 202,419,049 120,917,333
Claim ceded to reinsurer 36,448,615 80,180,823

Re-Insurance Premium Paid

(54,466,599)

(74,244,238)

Agent commission payment

(1,595,597,759)

(1,055,948,234)

Medical examination fee payment (9,999,776) (11,290,129)
Net Claim Paid (3,399,937,244) (2,424,490,197)
Service fee payment (103,940,809) (86,575,601)
Other Direct Expenses (1,331,795) (1,470,772)

Management expenditure payment

(970,619,755)

(602,195,661)

Bonus Paid to Employees

(165,168,987)

Income Tax Paid (606,706,398) (508,540,840)
(Increase)/decrese in current assets 176,940,305 (448,643,504)
(Increase)/decrese in current liabilities 436,115,114 24,547,649

Net cash flow from operating activities

7,383,668,435

5,486,950,403

B. Cash flow from investing activities:

(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Assets

(42,258,467)

(11,389,222)

Increase ) / Decrease in Investment in Govt. & Govt. Guaranteed Securities

339,150,000

Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Fixed Deposit of Banks & Financial Institutions

(6,820,000,000)

(7,136,500,000)

Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Other Deposit of Banks & Financial Institutions

Py Py Py

Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Other Deposit of Banks & Financial Institutions

(500,000,000)

400,322,520

(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Equity Share

(939,223,375)

193,313,762

(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Preference Share / Debenture

(Increase) Decrease in loans against insurance Policy

(2,875,628,305)

(2,118,231,917)

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances (56,466,208) (6,415,991)
Interest Income Received on Investment 4,083,768,434 3,356,812,787
Dividend Received 45,466,648 50,283,470
Rent Income - -
Interest on policy Loan 560,571,150 415,384,403
Gain on Sale of Investment 49,576,247 46,209,531
Other Direct Income 2,505,656 2,719,184

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

(6,152,538,220)

(4,807,491,474)

C. Cash flow from financing activites:

Interest Expence - (14,671,170)
Dividend Paid (8,429,542) -
Increase/Decrease in short term debt - (500,000,000)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C ) (8,429,542) (514,671,170)

Change in Exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balances (D)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (E)

1,222,700,674

164,787,759

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

1,132,959,347

968,171,588

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2,355,660,021

1,132,959,347

Bipin Kumar Lal T. Burnawal L.P. Das Kumar Keshar Bista
Asst . Manager (F&A) DCEO CEQ/Director Director

V. K. Kukreja Ashok Agrawal Mukesh Kumar Gupta M. R. Kumar
Director Director Director Chairman

As per our report of even date

CA . Madan Kumar Niraula
Partner

For Madan Niraula & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: November 4, 2020
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LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION (NEPAL) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2076

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Ashad 31, 2076, Rs  Ashad 32, 2075, Rs
Profit for the year 296,772,180 1,406,425,352
(Gains /(losses) on re-measuring financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 4.4 118,836,695 (506,924,225)
Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability 3,746,727 (4,098,332)
Total other comprehensive income 122,583,422 (511,022,557)
Deferred tax income /(expense) relating to components of other comprehensive income (30,645,855) 127,755,639
Other comprehensive income for the year (Net of tax) 91,937,567 (383,266,918)
Transfer to Insurance Fund (90% of Fair Value Gain & Acturial Gain) (82,743,810) 344,940,226
Net OCI carried to Other Reserve (10% of Fair Value Gain & acturial Gain) 9,193,757 (38,326,692)
Toal Comprehensive Income of the Year 305,965,937 1,368,098,660
Bipin Kumar Lal T. Burnawal L.P. Das Kumar Keshar Bista As per our report of even date
Asst . Manager (F&A) DCEQ CEQ/Director Director CA . Madan Kumar Niraula
Partner
V. K. Kukreja Ashok Agrawal Mukesh Kumar Gupta M. R. Kumar For Madan Niraula & Co.
Director Director Director Chairman Chartered Accountants

Date: November 4, 2020
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2. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars Amount
NPR

Cost

At 32 Ashad 2075 760,950

Additions -

Disposals -

At 31 Ashad 2076 760,950

Accumulated Amortization

At 32 Ashad 2075 717,143

For the Current Year 10,952

Disposals -

At 31 Ashad 2076 728,095

Net book value:

At 32 Ashad 2075 43,807

At 31 Ashad 2076 32,855

3. Financial assets at amortized cost

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR

Loans To Employees 46,603,143 38,559,433
Loans To Agents 333,342,264 287,035,942
Policy Loan 3.1 9,350,486,857 6,475,016,759
Provision for Loan Impairment (3,225,439) (15,132,627)
Debenture 1,306,419,999 1,498,244,000
Investment in Fixed Deposits 3.2 40,960,000,000 33,640,000,000
Investment in Government Securities 3.3 276,275,000 615,425,000
Total 52,269,901,824 42,539,148,507
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3.1 Policy Loans

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Endowment 3,533,261,173 2,484,902,755
Anticipated Endowment 648,849,409 542,233,979
Modified Endowment 4,314,285,583 2,956,886,008
Whole Life Policy 799,065,819 445,344,945
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) 55,024,873 45,649,072

9,350,486,857

6,475,016,759

3.2 Investment in Fixed Deposits

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Maturity Above 1 Year

Commercial Bank 33,240,000,000 26,740,000,000

Development Bank 1,025,000,000 380,000,000

Finance Companies 85,000,000 50,000,000

Maturity Below 1 Year

Commercial Bank 6,320,000,000 6,000,000,000

Development Bank 225,000,000 470,000,000

Finance Companies 65,000,000 -

40,960,000,000

33,640,000,000

3

.3 Investment in Government Securities

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2076
NPR

As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR

Short Term Investment in government Securities 276,275,000 339,150,000
Long Term Investment in government Securities - 276,275,000
276,275,000 615,425,000

4  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Quoted Equities/Preference (At Fair Value) 4.1 2,009,323,268 1,810,579,777
Unquoted Equities 42 914,595,167 52,666,667
Quoted Mutual Funds (At Fair Value) 4.3 107,169,763 109,781,684
CIT Units 16,000,000 16,000,000

3,047,088,198

1,989,028,128
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4.1 Quoted Equity & Preference Shares

Particulars

As at Ashad 31, 2076

Carrying value
NPR

Fair value
NPR

s
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As at Ashad 32, 2075

Carrying value
NPR

Fair value
NPR

Agriculture Development Bank Ltd 56,358,539 71,407,310 27,496,203 26,199,532
NCC Bank Ltd 2,336 3,700 2,336 4,960
Bank Of Kathmandu Ltd. - - 5,737,504 7,871,424
Century Commercial Bank Ltd 7,915 4,956 430,531 252,486
Chilime Hydropower Company 27,642,108 26,050,000 19,595,654 21,352,910
Citizens Bank International Ltd 54,872,010 33,492,032 56,983,319 35,368,376
Citizen Investment Trust Ltd 203,636,439 220,378,312 154,106,851 152,500,000
Civil Bank Ltd 65,438 52,456 716,997 481,491
Everest Bank Ltd - - 26,508,225 26,445,081
Everest Bank Ltd Preference 464,169 288,960 464,169 270,470
Global IME Bank Ltd 10,890,005 11,617,116 21,663,983 19,651,850
Himalayan Bank Ltd - - 5,348,842 6,869,317
JANTA BANK LTD - - 345,236 1,332,459
Kumari Bank Ltd 30,755,892 35,796,200 21,132,300 41,364,821
Kumari Bank Ltd Promoters 21,132,300 43,780,285 20,881,721 24,448,941
Laxmi Bank Ltd - - 305,203 832,566
Machchapuchre Bank Ltd - - - 24,035
Mega Bank Limited - - 20,505,028 12,318,725
Nabil Bank Ltd 162,182,712 339,724,800 179,553,757 288,380,616
Nepal Bangladesh Bank Ltd 47,263,485 31,590,156 47,263,485 30,451,772
Nepal Bank Ltd 197,584,605 378,526,512 107,364,055 232,265,327
Nepal Doorsanchar Comapany Limited - - 46,754,106 47,272,365
Nepal Film Dev Ltd 1,540 5,290 1,540 5,290
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd-Promoter 263,146,506 541,909,368 272,040,743 574,360,240
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd- Ordinary - - 140 9,936
Nepal Lube Oil Ltd 64,500 78,597 64,500 63,900
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd - - 26,726,243 36,207,440
Nepal Share Markets Ltd 3,077,900 - 3,077,900 -
NLG Insurance Ltd (Promoter Share) 216,982 1,221,088 216,982 1,221,088
NMB Bank Ltd 16,913,842 19,867,056 - 1,466,726
Prabhu Bank Ltd (Promoter Share) 22,398,920 17,648,739 22,398,920 14,812,420
Premier Insurance Company Ltd - - 9,050,766 6,212,250
Prime Commercial Bank Limited Promoter 32,056,704 67,883,328 32,056,704 67,545,600
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd - - 75,977 476,707
Sanima Bank Ltd 11,558,029 25,374,420 4,286,253 16,820,460
Siddhartha Bank Ltd 56,091,107 62,488,590 14,432,668 21,858,600
Sanima Mai Hydropower Company Ltd 26,489,367 24,499,020 - -
Soaltee Hotel Ltd - 17,812 4,124,732 12,250,602
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd - - 23,112,582 30,444,620
Sunrise Bank Limited 38,232,237 37,462,136 28,046,047 25,384,410
Sunrise Bank Limited Promoters' 464,328 1,864,830 464,328 2,011,756
Unilever Nepl Ltd 13,748,202 16,281,000 13,748,202 20,100,000
Mahalaxmi Bikash Bank Ltd. 2,070 5,850 2,070 6,570
Muktinath Bikash Bank Ltd - - 180,665 183,708
Om Development Bank Ltd 3,018 3,349 3,018 3,060
Sana Kisan Bikash Bank Ltd - - 2,686,901 3,018,320
Suryodaya Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd - - 70,945 156,550

1,297,323,206

2,009,323,268

1,220,028,331

1,810,579,777
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4.2 Unquoted Equity Shares

Particulars

18" ANNUAL REPORT

Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

As at Ashad 31, 2076

Carrying value
NPR

Fair value
NPR

As at Ashad 32, 2075

Carrying value
NPR

Fair value
NPR

Care Ratings Nepal Ltd 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Nepal Re-insurance Company Ltd 71,895,167 71,895,167 50,166,667 50,166,667
Insurance Institute of Nepal 200,000 200,000 - -
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Ltd 840,000,000 840,000,000 - -

914,595,167 914,595,167 52,666,667 52,666,667

4.3 Quoted Mutual Fund Shares

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
NPR NPR NPR NPR
NMB Hybrid Fund 12,619,210 12,657,068 12,619,210 12,228,014
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-1 1,305,000 1,412,010 1,305,000 1,507,275
Sanima Equity Fund 20,000,000 18,800,000 20,000,000 19,120,000
Siddhartha Equity Fund 9,677,480 9,764,577 9,677,480 9,251,671
Siddhartha Equity Orineted Scheme 2,948,860 3,190,667 2,948,860 3,111,047
Global IME Sammunat Yojana 37,972,680 31,821,106 37,972,680 33,302,040
Laxmi Equity Mutual Fund 29,247,920 22,316,163 29,247,920 23,690,815
Laxmi Value Fund-1 1,510,576 902,006 1,510,576 906,428
Nabil Equity Fund 6,759,020 6,306,166 6,759,020 6,664,394
122,040,746 107,169,763 122,040,746 109,781,684
4.4 Fair Value Gain/(losses)
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076  As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Quoted Equities/Preference (At Fair Value) 712,000,062 590,551,446
Quoted Mutual Funds (At Fair Value) (14,870,983) (12,259,061)
697,129,079 578,292,385
Charged to OCI for the year 118,836,695 (506,924,225)
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5. Other Financial Assets
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Other financial assets includes financial assets other than the above normal classification of financial assets measured at amortized cost,
fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income. This is stated at net of any impairment recognized.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Interest Receivable Against Investments 185,066,457 142,123,762
Interest Receivable Against Policy Loans 917,493,042 593,398,754
Other Interest Receivable Against Loans (except of Policy Loan) 671,225 1,265,394
Due from re-Insurer 22,673,230 17,370,900
Miscellaneous Debtors 5,313,183 2,074,823
Imprest Advance 942,422 141,216
Other advances 5,078,943 4,326,357
Security Deposits 281,000 281,000
Gratuity Fund at CIT
Provision For bad Debts - -
Provision for other Loss - -
Others Receivables - -
1,137,519,502 760,982,206

6. Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Advance Income Tax 2,336,175,749 1,729,469,351
Income Tax Liability (1,949,236,398) (1,300,522,394)
386,939,351 428,946,957

7. Other Assets

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Prepaid S.B. Claims - -
Prepaid Expenses 3,087,188 5,332,032
Debenture/ Share Application - -
Prepaid Maturity Claims - -
Seed Money to Insurance Promotion Board - -
Other Transit Items ( including cheques) - -
Branch Adjustment Accounts - -
Written off / Due Adjustable Outstanding Expenses - -
VAT Receivable - -
Deferred Employee Cost* 6,214,284 4,098,108
9,301,472 9,430,140

*Deferred employee cost is the subsidised interest between amortized cost of loan and book value of loan at reporting date.
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8. Cash and cash Equivalent
Cash and cash Equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and on hand, call deposits and fixed deposits with
a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of any provisions.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Cash Balance 547,115,940 152,795,198
Deposit In Commercial Banks 740,290,130 590,147,848
Deposit In Development Banks 25,075,678 17,568,082
Deposit of Financial Institutions 378,208 302,660
Cheque deposited but credit not received 108,610,053 15,198,878
Call Deposit At Commercial Bank 921,232,136 356,821,758
Call Deposit At Development Bank 6,761,394 124,923
Call Deposit At Other Financial Institution 6,196,482 -
2,355,660,021 1,132,959,347

9. Share Capital
The Gompany has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Incremental external costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of these shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Shares as at 1st Shrawan 1,334,677,500 1,334,677,500
Add: Bonus Shared Issued 160,161,300 -
Shares as at end of Ashad 1,494,838,800 1,334,677,500

9.1 Reconciliation of No. of Shares

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Shares as at 1st Shrawan 13,346,775 13,346,775
Add: Bonus Shared Issued 1,601,613 -

Add: Right Shared Issued - -
Add: Addition this year - -
Add: Calls in Advance - -
Shares as at end of Ashad 14,948,388 13,346,775

9.2 Rights of ordinary shareholders
All issued shares are fully paid and shares of the Company are listed in the Nepal stock exchange. The holders of ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at General Meetings of the Company.
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10. Share Premium
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Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Share Premium 61,151,801 61,151,801
61,151,801 61,151,801

11. Reserves & Surplus

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Catastrophic Reserve 11.1 267,313,366.00 236,283,131
Retained Earnings 11.2 1,475,087,623.00 1,377,936,521
Other Reserves 11.3 149,568,108.00 140,374,351

1,891,969,097

1,754,594,003

11.1 Catastrophe Reserve

ETHTTETS As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Catastrophe reserves 267,313,366 236,283,131
267,313,366 236,283,131

Catastrophe Reserve has been created based on 10% of net profit after Tax as per NAS Financials.

11.2 Retained Earnings

Particulars

Retained Earnings

As at Ashad 31, 2076
NPR

1,475,087,623

As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR

1,377,936,521

1,475,087,623

1,377,936,521

11.3 Other Reserve

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Regulatory Reserve 97,219,324 97,219,324
Transferred from Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 52,348,784 43,155,027
149,568,108 140,374,351

11.3.1 Regulatory Reserve

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Opening Balance 97,219,324 7,826,179
Excess of NFRS Profit Over Profit As per GAAP * - 60,877,140
Excess of NFRS Retained Earning Over retained Earning As per GAAP ** - 28,516,004
97,219,324 97,219,324

* The difference in profit for the year in the NFRS Financial Statements and the GAAP Financials are accounted under regulatory reserve as per Directive of Beema

Samiti dated 2075.09.12.

** The difference between retained earning as per NFRS Financial Statements and the GAAP Financials has been adjusted as regulatory reserve adjustment for FY

where retained earning as per NFRS is higher than retained earning as per GAAP.
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Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Outstanding claims provision 160,924,596 31,088,526
Incurred But not Reported Claims - -
Unexpired risk reserve provision 121 60,683,970 118,369,108
Life Insurance Fund 12.2 54,308,448,647 42,621,839,653

54,530,057,213

42,771,297,287

12.1 Unexpired Risk Reserve

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Unexpired risk provision of (0.E Single Premium) insurance 43,205,564 108,285,882
Unexpired risk provision of Micro Term insurance 17,478,406 10,083,227
60,683,970 118,369,108

Unexpired Risk Reserve Provision

Provision As per Proportionate Basis 60,683,970 102,041,465
Provision as per Books ( Actuarial Valuation) 47,984,554 118,369,108
Recognized in Financial Statement (Higher of above two) 60,683,970 118,369,108

Unexpired Risk Reserve has been recognized in the financial statement by considering the higher of the value as per actuarial valuation and value derived as per

insurance board directives.

Micro Insurance 17,478,406 10,083,227
Foreign Employment 43,205,564 91,958,238
60,683,970 102,041,465

12.2 Life Insurance Fund

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Endowment 21,792,543,209 17,296,980,987
Anticipated Endowment 5,597,049,411 4,866,854,791
Modified Endowment 22,217,448,339 17,371,602,348
Whole Life Policy 3,695,107,146 2,202,762,191
Term Insurance Policy 88,976,183 78,838,120
Special Term Policy 26,401,781 22,914,711
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) 419,783,525 393,491,263
Fair Value Reserve 471,139,053 388,395,243
54,308,448,647 42,621,839,653

Movement of Life Fund Balances from Transition date to Current year has been summarised in Note 40
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13. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Opening Balance of Deferred Tax (135,793,554) (268,955,624)
Changes in Deferred Taxes During the year - -
Recognized in Statement of Profit or loss (4,557,638) 5,406,431
Recognized in OCI (30,645,855) 127,755,639
Reversal of NAS Deferred Tax Balance - -
Closing Balance (170,997,047) (135,793,554)

14. Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities include financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Short term loans - -
Deposit premium 31,843,606 49,995,761
Unidentified Premium 26,866,343 25,000,399
Miscellaneous creditors 151,228,042 119,534,123
Other Payables 627,328,551 258,824,362
837,266,542 453,354,645

15. Insurance payables
Insurance payables includes amount payable related to insurance businesses such as due to agents, due to other insurance
companies, due to reinsurer.
Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration paid or payable.

Insurance payables are derecognised when the contractual obligations are extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred
to another party.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Due to Agents 141,622,332 218,776,635
Due to other Insurer - -
Due to re-insurer 13,621,311 3,406,374
155,243,643 222,183,009




) L|C 18" ANNUAL REPORT

Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

16. Other Liabilities
Other liabilities includes the amount of provisions made for staff bonus and any other provisions determined in accordance with
the requirements of NAS 37.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Provision for Retirement Benefits 16.1 16,155,481 21,312,177
Provision for Staff Bonus* 58,029,591 167,324,223
Salary Payable 5,202,034 4,113,157

Dividend Payables - -
Impairment Provision - -
Provision for Doubtful Debt for sundry creditors - -
Provision for other losses - -
Provision for salary - -
Provision for debt for reinsurers - -
Provision for VAT - -
other provision - -

79,387,106 192,749,557
* Staff bonus has been provided @ 10% of Net Profit (calculated as per regulatory directives) before tax.
16.1 Provision for Retirement Benefits
Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Gratuity
Defined Benefit Obligation As per Actuarial Report 41,434,387 36,898,364
Fair Value of Plan Assets (Gratuity Fund at CIT) (41,434,388) (29,098,001)
Leave Encashment
Defined Benefit Obligation As per Actuarial Report 16,155,482 13,511,814
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Net Liability 16,155,481 21,312,177

17. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables includes the payable to trade suppliers and any other payables other than the financial liabilities and other
liabilities. These payables are recorded at the amount expected to be payable as at the reporting date.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

TDS Payable 112,416,626 61,302,286
VAT Payable - -
Service Charges Payable to Beema Samiti 134,116,568 104,587,628
Medical Fee Payable 1,089,140 679,166
Payable to Other - -
247,622,334 166,569,080

18. Net Premiums

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Gross premium 18.1 13,411,656,786 10,458,762,810
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 18.2 (64,681,536) (51,493,747)
Net Premium 13,346,975,250 10,407,269,063
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Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Class-wise
Endowment 5,772,705,303 4,742,326,735
Anticipated Endowment 1,109,364,895 678,975,231
Modified Endowment 4,604,835,773 3,950,483,834
Whole Life Policy 1,805,169,134 926,501,536
Term Insurance Policy 6,120,970 6,571,591
Special Term Policy 2,297,188 2,428,011
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) 90,532,480 126,862,573
Other Life Insurance (Single Premium O.E) - 13,801,077
Other Life Insurance (Micro Term insurance) 20,631,043 10,812,222
13,411,656,786 10,458,762,810

18.2 Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Class-wise
Endowment (19,197,695) (14,361,281)
Anticipated Endowment (1,707,746) (958,617)
Modified Endowment (28,335,457) (22,362,768)
Whole Life Policy (14,797,997) (6,620,550)
Term Insurance Policy (148,431) (133,319)
Special Term Policy (7,353) (6,733)
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) (16,289) (9,737)
Other Life Insurance (Single Premium 0.E) - (6,956,679)
Other Life Insurance (Micro Term insurance) (470,568) (84,063)
(64,681,536) (51,493,747)

19. Fees and Commission Income

Particulars

Reinsurance commission income

As at Ashad 31, 2076
NPR

27,857,689

As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR

15,940,964

27,857,689

15,940,964

20. Investment income

Particulars

Interest income

20.1

FY 2074-75

4,126,116,960

Rs.

FY 2073-74
Rs
3,366,862,622

Dividend income

20.2

45,466,648

50,283,470

4,171,583,608

3,417,146,092
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Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Income from Government Securities & Securities Guaranteed by Govt. 31,513,153 37,586,250
Income from fixed deposit of Commercial Banks 3,802,908,416 3,093,151,617
Income from fixed deposit of Development Banks 96,691,159 88,253,903
Income from Investment in CIT/ Mutual Fund 880,000 480,000
Income from fixed deposit of Finance Company 8,977,569 850,685
Income from Other Deposit 47,362,346 20,523,925
Income from Loan - -
Income from debenture of bank and financial institution 113,942,018 98,935,970
Income from Others (Loans& Advances) 23,842,299 27,080,272

4,126,116,960

3,366,862,622

20.2 Revenue recognition of dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Dividend income from the ordinary shares of housing finance company - -
Dividend income from shares of other public company 45,466,648 50,283,470
Dividend income from preference share of bank and financial institution - -
45,466,648 50,283,470

21. Income From Policy Loan

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Endowment 348,991,028 223,052,314
Anticipated Endowment 68,699,722 51,922,078
Modified Endowment 396,212,637 259,419,069
Whole Life Policy 64,751,073 34,479,442
Term Insurance Policy - -
Special Term Policy - -
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) 6,010,978 3,410,521
Other Life Insurance (Single Premium 0.E) - -
Other Insurance Policy(Micro Term Insurance) - -
884,665,438 572,283,424

22. Net realised gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets disposed. Gains
and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost

and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Gain on sale of Financial Investments 70,648,812 69,705,474
Loss on sale of Financial Investments (21,072,565) (23,495,943)
49,576,247 46,209,531
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23. Provision for loan losses

This includes the gains and losses arising from changes in fair value on financial instruments classified as financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Provision on Agent & Staff loans (446,822) (15,132,627)
(446,822) (15,132,627)

24. Other Income

Other income includes disposal gains/ losses on property, plant and equipment and miscellaneous income. Profit or loss on sale of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the period in which the sale occurs and is classified under other income.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Miscellaneous Income 602,927 1,471,560
Others Direct Income 202,419,049 120,917,333
Loss on purchase of Investment - -
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 557,348 3,415
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets - (2,906)
Interest on Gratuity Fund 1,902,729 1,247,624
Provision for loss written back 12,354,010 -
217,836,063 123,637,026

25. Net claims paid

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Gross claims paid 251 3,399,937,244 2,424,490,197
Claim Ceded to Reinsurer 25.2 (41,750,945) (86,122,941)
3,358,186,299 2,338,367,256

25.1 Gross claims paid

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Endowment 2,032,556,128 1,328,888,113
Anticipated Endowment 566,259,226 405,231,776
Modified Endowment 483,544,481 461,152,335
Whole Life Policy 154,935,021 98,336,465
Term Insurance Policy 1,600,000 800,000
Special Term Policy 179,432 -
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) 88,304,575 20,025,661
Other Life Insurance (Single Premium O.E) 70,469,881 109,444,847
Other Insurance Policy(Micro Term Insurance) 2,088,500 611,000
3,399,937,244 2,424,490,197
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Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Endowment 700,000 5,500,000
Anticipated Endowment - 100,000
Modified Endowment 4,327,333 4,793,750
Whole Life Policy 189,333 8,775,000
Term Insurance Policy - -
Special Term Policy - -
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) - -
Other Life Insurance (Single Premium O.E) 36,534,279 66,954,191
Other Insurance Policy(Micro Term Insurance) - -
41,750,945 86,122,941

26. Policy Acquisition Cost

Particulars

Medical Fees

As at Ashad 31, 2076
NPR

10,409,750

As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR

9,157,274

Agent Commission

1,518,443,456

1,153,068,790

1,528,853,206

1,162,226,064

27. Net Service Charge Paid

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Endowment 57,535,075 47,279,654
Anticipated Endowment 11,076,571 6,780,166
Modified Endowment 45,765,003 39,281,211
Whole Life Policy 17,903,711 9,198,810
Term Insurance Policy 59,724 64,382
Special Term Policy 22,398 24,213
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) 905,162 1,268,528
Other Life Insurance (Single Premium O.E) - 68,444
Other Insurance Policy(Micro Term Insurance) 201,605 107,282
133,469,749 104,072,690

28. Change in Insurance contract liabilities

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Change in Gross insurance contract liabilities

Change in insurance contract outstanding claims provision 129,836,070 1,001,274

Change in unexpired risk reserve provision 28.1 (57,685,138) (421,770,284)

Life Insurance fund 11,603,865,184 8,673,835,533

Net change in Insurance contract liabilities

11,676,016,116

8,253,066,523
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Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Unexpired risk provision of (0.E Single Premium) insurance (65,080,317) (424,936,583)
Unexpired risk provision of Micro Term insurance 7,395,179 3,166,299

Net Change

(57,685,138)

(421,770,284)

29. Finance costs

Finance costs include the finance charges in respect of Bank loan, other Financial liabilities at amortized cost and in respect of

finance leases as per NAS 17 Leases.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Interest - 14,671,170
- 14,671,170

30. Other operating and administrative expenses
Recognition of other operating and administrative expenses

Other operating and administrative expenses are recognised on accrual basis. All expenditure incurred in the running of the business

and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Employee Cost 30.1 221,422,797 273,782,651
Administrative expenses 30.2 809,724,276 487,203,435
Depreciation 12,404,512 10,648,380
Written Off Expenditure 158,207 81,996
Share Related Expenses 1,331,795 1,469,772
Other Direct expenses - 1,000
Written Off Expenses (Fixed Assets) 163,240 -
Fine & Penalties 6,273,453 -
1,051,478,280 773,187,234

30.1 Employee Cost

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Employees Related Expenses 142,356,721 104,164,916
Provision for Staff Bonus* 55,874,355 148,904,541
Contributions made to the Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) 6,092,347 4,447,554
Leave Encashment 7,537,553 7,994,276
Gratuity 9,561,821 8,271,364
Defined benefit plan expenses - -
Total employee benefit expenses 221,422,797 273,782,651

* Provision for Staff bonus has been provided @ 10% of Net Profit (calculated as per regulatory directives) before tax.
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Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Building Rent 30,753,830 23,097,076
Water & Electricity 3,298,966 2,492,497
A. Building 964,326 29,620
B. Vehicle 625,865 551,592
C. Office Equipment 1,910,825 1,231,867
D. Others 88,311 128,626
Communication 4,621,566 3,346,456
Printing and Stationery 25,330,575 16,915,732
Non Capital Office ltems 1,850,842 538,934
Transportation 4,538,009 3,364,612
A. Internal 1,543,152 1,553,528
B. International 645,358 617,441
Agent Training 10,072,829 7,058,606
Other Agents Expenses 635,970,551 359,792,350
Insurance premium 1,587,344 1,285,548
Security Expenses 896,344 706,287
Legal and Consultancy Fees 910,150 152,000
Books & Periodicals 237,965 187,393
Advertisement and Publicity 26,677,684 25,633,822
Entertainment Expenses 380,189 300,000
Donation and Awards - -
Board Committee Expenses:
Meeting Allowance 328,000 314,000
Others 1,981,937 1,877,328
Other Committee Expenses:
Meeting Allowance 120,000 135,000
Others 389,678 233,779
General meeting Expenses 521,429 -
Actuarial Service Fee 1,935,623 1,382,588
Audit Fees & Expenses:
Audit Fee 423,750 367,250
Tax Audit Fee 70,625 56,500
Long Form Audit Fee 70,625 56,500
Other Fee 22,600 -
Internal Audit Fee 847,500 702,860
Others Expenses 389,185 155,211
Bank charges 183,608 766,381
Fee and charges 4,254,116 4,254,116
Stamps 2,158,545 1,751,877
Staff Refreshment Expenses 3,525,251 2,811,427
Office Upkeep and Cleaning Expenses 3,457,117 2,316,045
Conference Expenses (Admin) 454,577 108,247
Conference Expenses (Marketing) 10,965,115 6,098,754
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 6,959,223 4,428,834
Battery Expenses For Inverter 1,539,376 967,290
Information Publication Expenses 870,742 254,414
Office Shifting Expenses 928,147 230,111
Rates & Taxes (Vehicles) 631,975 475,288
License Renewal Fee (Beema Samiti) 50,000 50,000
Networking Expenses 13,736,997 8,342,014
Municipality Tax 3,854 83,634
809,724,276 487,203,435
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31. Income tax expense
Recognition of income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Income Tax 648,714,005 520,743,615
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) 31.1 4,557,638 (5,406,431)
653,271,643 515,337,184

31.1 Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Deferred tax expenses/(Income) 4,557,638 (5,406,431)

Deferred Tax Recognized in OCI - -
NFRS Adjustment Deferred tax effect

4,557,638 (5,406,431)

32. Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Company presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options granted to
employees.

Particulars As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Profit for the year (NPR) after tax 296,772,180 1,406,425,352
Weighted average number of shares 14,948,388 13,346,775
Basic Earning per share (NPR) 19.85 105.38
Diluted Earning per share (NPR) 19.85 105.38

Weighted average number of shares
Issued ordinary shares as at Ashad end 14,948,388 13,346,775
14,948,388 13,346,775

33. Proposed Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the Company’s
shareholde NPR Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors after the reporting date is not recognised as a liability and is only disclosed as a note
to the financial statements.

The Board has decided to propose bonus shares of NPR 201,000,000/- and cash dividend of NPR 10,578,947/-
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34. Related party transactions

The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with parties who are defined as related parties in NAS
24 - Related Party Disclosures.

Details of the related party transactions are reported below.

34.1 ldentification of Related Party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements

a.

i)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
has control or joint control of the reporting entity

ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity or

)
(i)

An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity
related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the reporting entity.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(
(
(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
(

34.2 Transactions and outstanding balances with the key management personnel

a)

According to the NAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.

Key management personnel compensation

Key Managerial Persons As at Ashad 31, 2076  As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR
Chief Executive Officer 5,438,141 -
Deputy Chief Executive Officer 11,821,174 7,082,187
Manager IT 12,176,806 6,527,573

34.3 Payments to Holding Company

Atechnical Service Fee amounting to Rs.4,254 thousand (including VAT) to Life Insurance Corporation of India. The technical
service fee is paid as per agreement approved by Insurance Board of Nepal for the period of 5 years w.e.f January 1, 2013.
The agreement was renewed for another 5 years w.e.f January 1, 2018.

35.

Accounting Classification and Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction on the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either;

In the principal market for the asset or liability.
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In the absence of the principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

Fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. When available, the Company measures the fair value of
an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. For units in unit trusts, fair
value is determined by reference to published bid-values. If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Company establishes
fair value using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to
the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses and option pricing models.
The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates specific to the Company,
incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies
for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-return
factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Company calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available observable market data.

Financial assets and liabilities based on the accounting classification with their carrying values and fair values are tabulated below.

Particulars

Financial assets

Fair value
through
profit or loss
Rs.

As at Ashad 31 2076

Fair value
through other
comprehensive
income

Rs.

Amortized cost
Rs.

Total carrying
amount
Rs.

Difference
Rs.

Measured at fair value through OCI | Refer Schedule 4 -| 3,047,088,198 -1 2,349,959,119(697,129,079
Measured at amortised cost Refer Schedule 3 - - 152,269,901,824 | 52,269,901,824 -
Total - | 3,047,088,198 |52,269,901,824 |54,619,860,943 (697,129,079

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Refer Schedule 14

837,266,542

837,266,542

837,266,542

837,266,542

Particulars

Fair value

through
profit or loss
Rs.

As at Ashad 32 2075

Fair value
through other
comprehensive
income

Rs.

Amortized cost
Rs.

Total carrying
amount
Rs.

Difference
Rs.

Financial assets

Measured at fair value through OCI | Refer Schedule 4 -1 1,989,028,128 -| 1,410,735,744 578,292,385

Measured at amortised cost Refer Schedule 3 - - | 42,539,148,507 | 42,539,148,507 -

Total -| 1,989,028,128 | 42,539,148,507 | 43,949,884,251| 578,292,385

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities Refer Schedule 14 453,354,645 - - 453,354,645 -
453,354,645 - - 453,354,645 -
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At the present, these risk do not vary significantly in relation to the loction of the risk insured by the Company.However,undue
concentration of amounts could have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on portfolio basis.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and future premiums,there are no mitigating terms and condition that reduce
the insurance risk accepted. The company manages these risk through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance arrangement
in line with LIC India's risk management framework, company being subsidiary of LIC India.

Operational risk Mitigation strategies

b) Product design risk

The Company issues life insurance policies of term,
endowment, modified endowment, single premium and
Overseas employment Single Premium policies. Product
designs of the portfolio may be outdated due to changes in
the climate leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of
people due to changing life styles and steady escalation of
costs in respect of relation to health sector in particular and
Insurance sector as a whole

Diversification of insurance contracts
geographical areas.

across a large

Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and
implementation of underwriting strategies, which are
designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type
of risk.

Strategies are periodically reviewed and suitable action
taken.

Constant watch on internal and external factors that may
impede planned objectives.

¢) Underwriting risk:

Underwriting risk generally refers to the risk of loss
on underwriting activity in the insurance. In insurance,
underwriting risk may either arise from an inaccurate
assessment of the risks entailed in underwriting an insurance
policy, or from factors wholly out of the underwriter's control.

Improve knowledge and skills of the underwriting staff.

Statistical databases are maintained on health risk prone
clients category to ensure such clients are strategically
declined.

Review profitability, pricing, terms and conditions of various
products.

Financial authority limits are in place for underwriting
clearly prescribing the limits to underwrite based on the
sum assured and risk.

d) Mortality Factor:

Mortality risk generally encompasses mortality rate
prevailing in country, insurer group due to severity of
climatic and accident prone working conditions, epidemic
and environmental hazardous living conditions

Improve knowledge and skills of the underwriting staff.

Statistical databases are maintained on health risk prone
clients category to ensure such clients are strategically
declined.

Review profitability, pricing, terms and conditions of various
products.

Financial authority limits are in place for underwriting
clearly prescribing the limits to underwrite based on the
sum assured and risk.
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Particulars Year ended Ashad 31, 2076

Gross premium Premium Ceded Net Premium
Portfolio
Endowment 5,772,705,303 (19,197,695) 5,753,507,608
Anticipated Endowment 1,109,364,895 (1,707,746) 1,107,657,149
Modified Endowment 4,604,835,773 (28,335,457) 4,576,500,316
Whole Life Policy 1,805,169,134 (14,797,997) 1,790,371,137
Term Insurance Policy 6,120,970 (148,431) 5,972,539
Special Term Policy 2,297,188 (7,353) 2,289,835
Other Life Insurance (Endowment Single Premium) 90,532,480 (16,289) 90,516,191
Other Life Insurance (Single Premium 0.E) - - -
Other Life Insurance (Micro Term insurance) 20,631,043 (470,568) 20,160,475

13,411,656,786 (64,681,536) 13,346,975,250

Governance framework
The Board of Directors of the Company has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk
management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Board is ultimately responsible for monitoring compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures. The
Board is assisted in these functions by internal audit department and the Board Audit Committee. The internal audit department
undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the
Board.

Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure that the Company
is satisfactorily managing affairs for policyholders' benefit. At the same time, regulators are also interested in ensuring that
the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural
disasters.

As an insurer, the operations of the Company are subject to regulatory supervision of the Insurance Board of Nepal. The Company
has taken necessary action to comply with and complied with applicable regulations throughout the year.

(ii) Financial risks
Nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments.
e (redit risk

e Liquidity risk

o Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks and the Company’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risks.



48

Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

18™ ANNUAL REPORT 4 Llc

NI

Credit risk/loan risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms and arises principally from the Company’s premium
receivables, reinsurance receivables, investments in debt securities and deposits with financial institutions such as time
deposits, demand deposits, etc.

Management of credit risk - Financial investments (Except listed equity securities)

The Company evaluates the credit ratings of the respective investee and/or respective issue prior to the investment
decision are made. In addition, the Company focuses on tolerable levels concentration risk and portfolio monitoring in
line with the Company’s risk appetite.

Management of credit risk - Cash at bank
The Company's exposure to credit risk with relevant to cash and cash equivalents is minimal since these balances are
maintained at banks and finance companies with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events, there is also
a liquidity risk associated with timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Management of liquidity risk
The following controls are in place to mitigate liquidity risk which is faced by the Company.

i. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that funds available are adequate to meet claim payments
to its policyholders and to ensure operational expenses are paid when they are due.

ii. Main sources of the Company’s funding are capital and gross written premium. The Company also maintains a
portfolio of readily marketable securities to strengthen its liquidity position. Investment durations are diversified,
depending on the cash flow needs of the Company and maturity periods are regularly reviewed. Cash flow analysis
is done prior to investments are made.

iii. The Company's treaty agreements with reinsurers contain clauses permitting the immediate draw down of funds to
meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain agreed size.

iv. Availability of a stand-by overdraft facility to be used only in the event of an emergency.

v. Determining the maturity profiles of insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets based on the estimated
timing of net cash outflows from recognised insurance liabilities.

vi. Planning for all large cash outflows in advance and making necessary arrangements to ensure the availability of
funds to meet such outflows.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The Company monitors the liquidity position of the Company to asses funding requirements. Liquid assets include cash
and short term investments and bills purchased. The Company also monitors maturity profile of its assets and liabilities.

Maturity profiles

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets, financial liabilities and insurance contract
liabilities. Unearned premiums have been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations. The
Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of an
unforeseeable interruption of cash flow. The Company also has committed lines of credit that it can access to meet
liquidity needs.



&

Y

LIC

As at Ashad 32, 2075
Particualrs

Within 1 Year

1-3 Years

3-5 Years
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More than 5 Years No stated Maturity

Financial assets

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Other Financial Asset 760,497,214 - 760,497,214
Security Deposit - - 281,000 - - 281,000
Investment In Share - - - 1,850,987,383 1,850,987,383
Mutual Fund - - 138,040,746 - 138,040,746
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 7,454,213,825 | 8,684,814,575 [17,499,545,384 | 8,900,574,723 - | 42,539,148,507
Reinsurance receivables - - - - - -
Miscellaneous Debtors 203,992 - - - 203,992

Due from re-Insurer

Cash and short term deposits

1,132,959,347

1,132,959,347

Total

9,347,874,379

8,684,814,575

17,499,826,384

9,038,615,469

1,850,987,383

46,422,118,189

Financial liabilities

Due to re-insurer (3,406,374 - - - (3,406,374)
Outstanding Claim Provision (31,088,526) - - - (31,088,526)
Miscellaneous creditors (119,534,123) - - - (119,534,123)
TDS Payable (61,302,286) - - - (61,302,286)
Other Payable (258,824,362) - - - (258,824,362)
Medical Fee Payable (679,166) - - - (679,166)
Salary Payable (4,113,157) - - - (4,113,157)
Service Charges Payable to Beema Samiti|  (104,587,628) - - - (104,587,628)
Due to Agents (218,776,635) - - - (218,776,635)
Deposit Premium (49,995,761) (49,995,761)
Unidentified Premium (25,000,399) (25,000,399)
Bonus (167,324,222) - - - (167,324,222)
Leave Encashment (491,632) - - (13,020,182) (13,511,814)
Pension and Gratuity (7,800,363) - - -

Provision for Dividend

(7,800,363)

Short Term Loan

Total

(1,052,924, 635)

(13,020,182)

(1,065,944,817)

Net Financial Assets

8,294,949,743

8,684,814,575

17,499,826,384

9,038,615,469

1,837,967,201

45,356,173,372
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Within 1 Year

1-3 Years

3-5 Years More than 5 Years

s
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No stated Maturity

Financial assets

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Other Financial Asset

1,131,925,319

1,131,925,319

Security Deposit - - 281,000 - - 281,000
Investment in shares - - - 2,923,918,435 2,923,918,435
Mutual Fund - - 123,169,763 - 123,169,763
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 7,260,090,633 | 9,684,239,012 |15,078,070,187 | 20,247,501,993 - | 52,269,901,824
Miscellaneous Debtors 5,313,183 - - - - 5,313,183
Cash and short term deposits 2,355,660,021 - - - 2,355,660,021

Total

10,752,989,156

9,684,239,012

15,078,351,187

20,370,671,756

2,923,918,435

58,810,169,545

Financial liabilities

Due to re-insurer (13,621,311) - - - (13,621,311)
Outstanding Claim Provision (160,924,596) - - - (160,924,596)
Miscellaneous creditors (151,228,042) - - - (151,228,042)
TDS Payable (112,416,626) - - - (112,416,626)
Other payable (627,328,551) - - - (627,328,551)
Medical Fee Payable (1,089,140) - - - (1,089,140)
Salary Payable (5,202,034) - - - (5,202,034)
Service Charges Payable to Beema Samiti|  (134,116,568) - - - | (134,116,568)
Due to Agents (141,622,332) - - - (141,622,332)
Deposit Premium (31,843,606) (31,843,606)
Unidentified Premium (26,866,343) (26,866,343)
Bonus (58,029,591) (58,029,591)
Pension and Gratuity - - 1 1
Leave Encashment (1,412,797) - - (14,742,685) (16,155,482)

Total

(1,465,701,537)

(14,742,684)

(1,480,444,221)

Net Financial Assets

9,287,287,619

9,684,239,012

15,078,351,187

20,370,671,756

2,909,175,751

57,329,725,324
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36.2

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risk is an aggregation of,

a) Interest rate risk
b) Currency risk
¢) Equity price risk

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. Floating rate instruments typically expose the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate
instruments expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

Management of interest rate risk

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in the
investment policy which is regularly reviewed by the Investment Committee. Among such guidelines, following guidelines
included to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company.

ii. Forecasting and monitoring future cash inflows and outflows when formulating investment strategies.
iii. Relative amounts of the each portfolio will be determined by the Company's liquidity position, availability of market values,
individual securities' risk/return profiles.

b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company's principal transactions are carried out in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.) and hence, its exposure to foreign exchange risk
arises primarily with respect to reinsurance recoveries and US Dollars denominated assets developed out of aforementioned
recoveries.

Management of currency risk

The currency risk faced by the Company is minimal since no material liabilities or assets were recorded on foreign currency
denominated as at the reporting date. The effect of gain or loss on movement of the foreign currency rate against the Nepalese
Rupee will be reflected in the statement of profit or loss.

c¢) Equity price risk

The risk of fluctuation in fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to a change in market prices, other than
those occurring due to interest rate risk or currency risk, is referred to as equity price risk. Accordingly, the equity price risk
affects the Company's investments in equity instruments.

Management of equity price risk

In order to mitigate the equity price risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in the
investment policy. The Company's investment policy guides the management to set/monitor objectives and constraints on
investments, diversification plans as well as limits on equity exposure. Compliance with the policy is monitored and the
exposure and instances of non-compliance are reported to the Board of DirectoNPR The policy is reviewed regularly for
pertinence and for changes in the risk environment. The Company manages its equity price risk by investing in relatively less
volatile sectors and in different sectoNPR

Sensitivity analysis - Equity price risk

Sensitivity analysis for equity risk reflects how changes in the fair value of equity securities at the reporting date will fluctuate
in response to assumed changes in equity market prices. The movements in the fair value of equity securities monitored by
assessing the projected changes in the fair value of equity securities held by the portfolios in response to assumed equity
price movements of +/- 10% and +/- 20%.
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36.3 Operational risks

37.

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial
loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation
of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including
the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through
the Company's strategic planning and budgeting process.

Net change in operational assets and liabilities As at Ashad 31, 2076 As at Ashad 32, 2075

NPR NPR

Net change in receivables and other assets 376,408,628 (264,294,544)
Net change in insurance liabilities 11,758,759,926 7,916,897,257
Net change in other liabilities 284,663,334 (241,623,786)
12,419,831,888 7,410,978,927

Events after the Reporting Date

34.1 Dividends

35

The company has declared bonus shares of NPR 51,51,61,200/ @ 34.46265912% of Paid up share capital and cash dividend
amounting NPR 53,12,25,960/- for FY 2074-75 and got approval from annual general meeting of shareholders on 2076-04-24
(9th August 2019). Bonus shares thus declared have been disclosed under Reserves & Surplus, as the decision of declaration
and approval thereof made during FY 2076-77.

Capital Commitments and Contingencies

35.1 Capital commitments

The company does not have any Capital Commitments as on 31st Ashad, 2076.

35.2 Contingencies

In the opinion of the Directors and the Company’s lawyers, pending litigation against the Company will not have a material
impact on the reported financial results or future operations of the Company.

The Company has contingencies amounting NPR 798.2 lakh. It includes NPR 268.73 lakh against death claim repudiated. The
remaining amount is of tax assessment which has been re-assessed by Tax Authority for the year 2066/67, 2067/68, 2068/69,
2069/70 and 2070/71. The company, being unsatisfied with the amount assessed by the Tax Authority, has submitted an
application to IRD for Administrative review.

All pending litigation for claims have been evaluated and adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements.
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40. Reconciliation Statement

40.1 Reconciliation of Profit or loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Notes Ashad 31, 2076 Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR
Profit/Loss as per GAAP 310,302,353 1,345,548,211
Adjustments due to NFRS Implementation
1. Increase (Decrease) in Other operating and administrative expenses (18,160,351) 78,150,640
a. Gratuity/Pension Expenses 1.1 (3,746,727) 12,255,353
b. Leave Encashment Expenses (2,111,892) -
c. Reversal of Provision for losses on Investment 1.2 (16,215,369) 60,762,361
d. Depreciation Adjustment Due to NFRS 1.3 (193,443) 174,620
e. Reversal of Amortization of Deferred Investment Premium 14 4,107,080 4,958,306
2. Adjustment in Deferred Tax due to difference in book base as
per NAS & As per NFRS 2 4,630,178 (17,273,499)
Total Adjustment (B) (13,530,173) 60,877,141
Profit/(Loss) as per NFRS [A+B] 296,772,180 1,406,425,352
Notes

NFRS Profit amount differ from GAAP is due to the following reason:

1.1 Increase/ Decrease on gratuity as per actuarial valuation.

1.2 As per the GAAP, investment are recorded in cost whereas in NFRS, investment are recoded in Fair value and unrecognized gain\loss are
already adjusted in fair value so provision for loss in investment is reversed.

1.3 As per GAAP, depreciation is calculated in WDV method whereas in NFRS depreciation is calculated in SLM method.

1.4 Amortization of Deferred premium on investment in GAAP has been derecognized in NFRS in view of entire unamortized deferred premium
balance has been adjusted with reserve & surplus as on transition date.

2 Deferred tax adjustment on fair value change and Actuarial Gain/Loss.
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40.2 Reconciliation of Retained Earning & Other Equity

Particulars

18" ANNUAL REPORT

Year Ended

Ashad 31, 2076

NPR

Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepal) Ltd.

Year Ended

Ashad 32, 2075

NPR

Retained Earnings 459,847,988 1,217,775,217
Proposed Bonus Shares 515,161,200 160,161,300
Other Equity as per GAAP(A) 975,009,188 1,377,936,517
Adjustments due to NFRS Implementation

1. Remeasurement of Investment At Fair Value Recognized in OCI 697,129,079 578,292,385
2. Remeasurement of Actuarial Gain/(loss) Recognized through OCI 854,702 (2,892,025)
3. Net Increase/(Decrease) in Retained Earning 594,448,065 93,919,075
a. Gratuity & Leave Encashment (854,702) 5,003,917
b. Reversal of other Provision

c. Reversal of provision for loss on investment 64,772,314 80,987,685
d. Impairment Recognized (1,566,347) (1,566,347)
e. Reversal of Depreciation 870,840 1,064,278
f. Cash Dividend Restated from liability to other equity 531,225,960 8,429,542
4. Deferred Tax Reserve Created on Remeasurement recognized in OCI (174,495,945) (143,850,090)
5. Transfer of 90% of Net OCI to Life Insurance Fund (471,139,053) (388,395,243)
6. Amortization of Premium on Investment (649,202) (4,756,282)
7. Deferred Tax Reserve Considered in Retained Earning 3,498,897 8,056,535
Total Adjustment (B) 649,646,543 140,374,355
Retained Earning & Other Equity as per NFRS [A+B] 1,624,655,731 1,518,310,872

NFRS balance of other equity differ from the GAAP balance is due to remeasurement of following items namely Fair value reserve created on
investment available for sale, Actuarial reserve created on gratuity as per actuarial valuation, premium on government bond amortization as per
NFRS, impact of gratuity and leave encashment in retained earning, Reversal of other provision and expense recognized as liability and assets
and reversal of provision for loss on investment, Impairment of PPE/ Intangibles on transition date on applying NFRS, Reversal of depreciation on
applying NFRS, Deferred tax reserve created due to change in fair value and Actuarial gain/loss.
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40.4 Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flows

Particulars

Year ended Ashad 31, 2076

As per NFRS

Difference

As per GAAP

18™ ANNUAL REPORT
Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

Year ended Ashad 32, 2075

As per NFRS

Difference

As per GAAP

Cash flow From Operating activities* 7,383,668,435 | 175,114,822 | 7,558,783,257 | 5,486,950,403 42,985,698 | 5,529,936,101
Cash Flow from Investing Activities (6,152,538,220) | (845,769,327) | (6,998,307,547) | (4,807,491,474) | (56,996,017) (4,864,487,491)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities (8,429,542) - (8,429,542) | (514,671,170) - | (514,671,170)
Net Cash Flow From Overall activities 1,222,700,673 | (670,654,505) 552,046,168 164,787,759 | (14,010,319) | 150,777,440
Opening Balance of Cash & Bank Balances* 1,132,959,347 | (372,145,559) 760,813,788 968,171,588 | (358,135,240) | 610,036,348
Closing Cash Balance 2,355,660,020 (1,042,800,064) 1,312,859,956 | 1,132,959,347 | (372,145,559) | 760,813,788

* Cheque deposited but credit not received & call deposits in banks & Fls at the beginning of FY now shown as cash & cash equivalent (Previously shown as current

assets).




LIC

\L4

v
%

\J]

18™ ANNUAL REPORT

Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

Ly9'8vY 808'YS | - 6.96/5°6Ly | 68F'LbL'9Z | G6V'GLS 68 668°888°L0L°C | 890°L¥L'V6E2Z | £0V'188°189°G | ¥19'889°886°L2 9102 ‘L€ Peysy uo sy pun aji] pajejsay
018°¢vL 28 - 192°6€9 25L oY 68¢°9¢elL €0€'6v9'S 66v°6LLVE 9689598 9L 10G°€E SHAN 10} 8Aj9311q KiojeinBiay Jad se %06 -|J0 woij Jajsuel]
188'v0L°622'VS | - ZLY'0V6'8Ly | LEL'90L°0Z | OLL'6LE°68 965°6€2°20L'C | 69°120°09€°2Z | SYS'V2e'€L9'G | 898'08L°GS6°Le 9.0 ‘1€ PRYSY UO SB SAIH|IqerT] J9e)u0) dueinsuy|
65€°860°LEY - 618°v2L°L 9/9°960°2 98€°82L°LL 9122w 0v9°€€0°091L 956°€L2'852 0v0‘8LY‘E snjding piemiod parie)
012'91r'9e5's | - - - - ¥26'0vE'€E6 6£0'76.'986° €1'220' 108 vE8'852'G1E'2 snuog Ma 40 1809
G/€'906°/GE - - - - LyS'v0L'€01 68752022 GEB'IPY'EE - JUN0JY SSO7 pUE JJ01d 0} PalIajsuel |
0v6°020°28€'9 | - 6/8°v2L°L 9/9°960°2 98€°92L°LL Lv2'89v°LE0°L | 2L5°285°19€'C | YOE‘EYL'Z6S v18°9/981€°2 snjding
620°G61°€98°LY | - 9v9'850°8Ly | GOL'G0E'Ve | S6L°LVE‘LL 9vp‘ere19L°Z | 6G9°029°0L0°02 | Z0'SGLLE0‘G | GEE'008°SLY 6L SuoIsInoId pue saijiqer [ejo)
896'G12'S6L'YS | - G25'€8L'61y 18L'10¥'9 | €81'9/6'88 €69'L18'86L°C | 2€2'602'8EY'2C | 9VE'96Y0EI'G 602'€¥S'26L' 12 pun4 8y} Jo soueleq [ej0]
€69°6€8°129°2y | - LGL'8Y9°26E | 899°6L2°€2 | LVO'LY2 6L 0v9'v68°602°2 | 8LS°I8L'VLGLL | ¥26'620°EV6Y | S¥9'V29°6SHLL GL0Z ‘2€ Peysy uo sy puny ajI7 pajeisay
(9zz‘ov6'vre) |- (9LL°LLL€) (816°281) (10€°1¥9) (b9L'v88°LL) | (196°2hLLYL) (9€L'v00°0Y) (0€v°1L0E LYL) | SHAN 40) 3Anailq Aojeinfiay Jad se 9,06 -|J0 Woj 3jsued L
6/8°6LL996'CY | - 198'G28°G6€ | 98G'L0V'€2 | 8v€°Z88°6L vOY‘6LL°L22°2 | 6€G'V26°GG9°LL | 090°VE0'€86‘Y | GLO‘926°009°LL GL0Z ‘Z€ PeYSY U0 Se Saj|IqelT] J9eju0) asueinsu|
¥59°962°LL0‘S | - 258°682°G 696°886°2L | G0S‘SEE‘8L 99G°LLLv0L L98'ELL'VBE' L | p2eeas o8y G12°088'82€'2 sn|ding piemiog papie)
060'1€9'€9EY |- - - - 6v6',2.'€2S 689'€€2'689' 1 66€'929'88¢ 150670298 snuog MmN 40 1809
G8'SrL'6E0L |- 860'1.S veY Lbb | 212'269'8 090'v2E'9€ L 188'118'1vE 960'9/8'G8 8005069 JUN0JY $SO7 PUE JJ01d 0} Pa.IBjsuel |
625°€L9°VLV 0L | - 056°€98°G 6vv‘0ShvL | LLS'0E0°L8 GIG'6L2'V9E°L | €V6'V88'GeY‘E | GGL'GGE‘L98 0v£°828°G59°‘y snjding
199°916°858°2¢ | - LIy L0288€ | 9¥L'Ge6'6 GL8°%0G 9/9°968°V.6 262°G6G°L82°FL | 2L0°GLEI60'Y | GGOLG0°90L°EL SUOISIAOIJ pue sal|IqerT] [eloL
25508270, - 12L'L1E8 181'922 96105} vre'282' 12 669'€r2 ¥0E 69.'/v9'28 OvL'L1v'282

GLL'9gT'vSlL'ee |- 069'€88'6.€ 696'869'6 61€'75E 288715856 16G'1GE'E86°CL | €08'/2.'800F GI6'GH'8I8°CL Aungery fojod fexol
v6L'06L'ELTEY |- 19€'G90'¥6€ G61L'9SEvE | 2€€'GeS' L8 IGZ'9EL'BEE'T | GET08Y'ELLLL | L28'0EL'TSEY G66'G88'19L°LL pun4 8y} Jo soueleq [ej0]
9ve‘vv6'262 Ve | - 699°8Gh°‘0LZ | 08€°998°0Z | LYE‘€26°0L 80v°/96°V€S‘L | ¥28°LLS 06LEL | L09'VES 66Y‘Y 121228660 VL 102 ‘L€ PRYSY UO SY pund )17 pajelsay

(3°0 wnywaig
a|fuig)
aJueinsu|
917 48y10

(wmwaid 8)burg
Juawmopu3)
aoueinsu|
874310

faijod
wia] |e1vads

fatjod
ajueinsu|
way

faijod
)17 8j0um

Juawmopuy
PayipoN

Juawmopu3l
pajedianuy

faijod
juawmopuy

uonduasag

(37



) Llc 18" ANNUAL REPORT

N Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

42 Contingent Liability

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision is made

Total Contingent Liability for the years are provided below:

Particulars Year ended Ashad 31, 2076 Year ended Ashad 32, 2075
NPR NPR

Income Taxes 91,692,890 91,692,890
TDS Demand 1,254,490 1,254,490
Repudiated Death Claim 26,873,000 31,912,824
79,820,380 84,860,204




60 18™ ANNUAL REPORT
Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
as At Ashad 32, 2076

Significant Accounting Policy/
Notes to the Accounts

1. Corporate Information:

1.1 Life Insurance Corporation (Nepal) Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “LIC (Nepal)”) is a public limited
company, established on 11/09/2057 (26 December,
2000) from company registrar office, Kathmandu. The
company obtained the license from Beema Samiti on
23/04/2058 which was renewed on 28/08/2075.

1.2 Financial Statements:

The Financial Statement of the LIC (Nepal) for the year
ended Ashad 31, 2076 comprises Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Notes to the Financial
Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of the
Company and reconciliations as per Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS-1).

1.3 Principal Activities and Operations:
Insurance

The principal activities of the Insurance Company are to
issue Life Insurance contract to the general public.

Parent & Subsidiary and Associates as at Ashad 31,
2076 is given below:

LIC India holds 55% of ownership of LIC (Nepal). It is
Subsidiary of LIC India

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.1 Basis of Preparation:

2.1.1Statement of Compliance:
The Financial Statement of LIC (Nepal)which comprises
components of Financial Statement mentioned above
have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards comprising of Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards and Nepal Accounting Standards
(hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute
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of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance
with the requirements of the Companies Act ,2063.

For all periods up to Ashad 31, 2074, the LIC (Nepal)
prepared the financial statements in accordance with
the Nepal Accounting Standards and in compliance
with Regulatory Provisions as per Insurance Act, 2049
& Directive of Beema Samiti which were effective fill
that period. From 2074-75 onwards the company has
prepared its financial statement in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

2.1.2Responsibility for Financial Statements:

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
and presentation of Financial Statements of LIC (Nepal)
as per the provisions of the Companies Act,2063.

2.1.3Approval of Financial Statements by Board of

Directors:

The accompanied Financial Statements have been
authorized by the Board of Directors in 108" board
meeting date 25" November, 2020 and recommended for
its approval by Beema Samiti. After receiving approval
from Beema Samiti, it will be placed at the Annual
General Meeting of the shareholders for final approval.

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Insurancehave been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
following material items in the Statement of Financial
Position:

m Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (quoted investments) are
measured at fair value.

m Employee defined benefit obligations of Gratuity
and Leave Encashment Eligibility are measured in
accordance with provision contained in NAS 19
based on report of the Actuary.

m Insurance contract liabilities are determined in
accordance with provision contained in NFRS 4 &
actuarial report for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT)
as per existing Directive of BeemaSamiti as per
Insurance Act, however, insurance contract liabilities
are also determined in accordance with Insurance
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Act,2049 and Final Liability is taken as higher of two

2.1.9Standards issued but not yet effective:

in compliance with Insurance Board Circular dated
2075/09/12.

2.1.4Functional and Presentation Currency:

The Financial Statements of LIC (Nepal) are presented
in Nepalese Rupees (Rs), which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Insurance
operates. There was no change in LIC (Nepal)’s
presentation and functional currency during the year
under review.

2.1.5Presentation of Financial Statements:

The assets and liabilities of LIC (Nepal) presented in the
Statement of Financial Position are grouped in an order
of liquidity from less liquid to more liquid excepting non-
financial assets and liabilities.

2.1.6Materiality and Aggregation:

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard -
NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each
material class of similar items is presented separately
in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature
or functions too are presented separately unless they are
immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are
offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss
unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

2.1.7Comparative Information:

The accounting policies have been consistently applied
by Insurance Company with those of the previous
financial year in accordance with NAS 01 Presentation
of Financial Statements, except those which had to be
changed as a result of application of the new NFRS.
Further, comparative information is reclassified wherever
necessary to comply with the current NFRS presentation.

2.1.8Going Concern:

The Directors have made an assessment of Insurance’s
ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that
it has the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon Insurance’s ability to continue as a going concern
and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease
operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of
issuance of the financial statements are set out below.
The Insurance will adopt these standards when they
become effective. Pending a detailed review, the financial
impact is not reasonably estimable as at the date of
publication of these financial statements.

i) NFRS 9- Financial Instruments: Classification and
Measurement

NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on
replacement of NAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

Since NFRS 9 consists of mixed sets of standards from
IAS 39 and IFRS 9, this standard has been brought to
the attention on issuing body and Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal. This is under review and will be
effective after this has been resolved.

ii) NAS 40- Investment Properties

NAS 40 has been issued and made effective. However,
the company has not applied the standard in view of no
assets falling under this category.

Investment property is property (land or a building-or
part of a building-or both) held (by the owner or by the
lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both, rather than for:

a) Use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or

b) Sale in the ordinary course of business

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment:
2.2.1Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
shall be recognized as an asset if, and only if;

(i) Itis probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the entity; and

(i) The cost of the item can be measured reliably.
a) Initial Recognition

Items of property, plant and equipment may be acquired
for safety or environmental reasons. The acquisition of
such property, plant and equipment, although not directly
increasing the future economic benefits of any particular
existing item of property, plant and equipment, may be
necessary for an entity to obtain the future economic
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benefits from its other assets. Such items of property,
plant and equipment qualify for recognition as assets
because they enable an entity to derive future economic
benefits from related assets in excess of what could be
derived had those items not been acquired.

b) Subsequent Recognition

An entity does not recognize in the carrying amount
of an item of property, plant and equipment the costs
(Inclusive of VAT) of the day-today servicing of the item.
Rather, these costs are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Costs of day-to-day servicing are primarily the
costs of labor and consumables, and may include the
cost of small parts. The purpose of these expenditures
is often described as for the ‘repairs and maintenance’ of
the item of property, plant and equipment.

Parts of some items of property, plant and equipment
may require replacement at regular intervals. An entity
recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an
item when that cost (Inclusive of VAT) is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of those
parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance
with the de-recognition provisions of NAS16.

VAT paid on acquisition of any PPE is capitalized.

2.2.2Measurement of property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies
for recognition as an asset shall be measured at its cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises:

(a) Its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates.

(b) Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

(c) The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs
either when the item is acquired or as a consequence
of having used the item during a particular period for
purposes other than to produce inventories during
that period.
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2.2.3Measurement after recognition:

An entity shall choose either the cost model or the
revaluation model as its accounting policy and shall
apply that policy to an entire class of property, plant and
equipment.

Cost model
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation less accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluation model
The Insurance Company has not applied the revaluation
model to the any class of property, plant & equipment.

Depreciation
The company applies Straight Line Method of
depreciation over useful life of PPE.

Depreciation of these assets commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use which is generally
on commissioning and not when it starts to be used.
Items of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated
in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount
substituted for cost) of the assets after commissioning,
less its residual value, over their remaining useful lives
on straight line method assuming the written down
value at transition date as cost of assets. Land is not
depreciated.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item shall be depreciated separately.

A significant part of an item of property, plant and
equipment may have a useful life and a depreciation
method that are the same as the useful life and the
depreciation method of another significant part of that
same item. Such parts may be grouped in determining
the depreciation charge of assets to which significant
part belongs to.

The depreciation charge for each period shall be
recognized in profit or loss unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.

Estimated rate of Depreciation
The estimated rate of Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment of the Company are as follows:
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Useful life for assets

Asset Class Transition Acquired after

Transition

date date

A- Building (Boundary 10 Years 20 Years
Wall)
B- Furniture & Fixture 5 Years 15 Years
ﬁ' Computer & 3 Years 5 Years
ccessories

B- Office equipment 3 Years 7 Years
E- Office Equipment 5 Years 5 Vears
Telephone
G- Motor Vehicle 5 Years 10 Years

) . 2 Years 5 Years
Office Partition

2 Years 10 Years

Software 2 Years 5 Years
Advertising Material 3 Years 5 Years

Property, plant and equipment’s residual values and
useful lives are reviewed at each Statement of Financial
Position date and changes, if any, are treated as changes
in accounting estimate.

2.2.4 Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment:

To determine whether an item of property, plant and
equipment is impaired, an entity applies NAS 36
Impairment of Assets. That Standard explains how an
entity reviews the carrying amount of its assets, how
it determines the recoverable amount of an asset, and
when it recognizes, or reverses the recognition of, an
impairment loss.

Compensation from third parties for items of property,
plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up
shall be included in profit or loss when the compensation
becomes receivable.

There is no any condition to the company to impair its
property plant and equipment as on 31stAshad 2076
excepting impairment taken on Transition date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
units (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
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impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset’'s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed, only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

2.2.5 De-recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment shall be derecognized:

(a) On disposal; or

(b) When no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment shall be included in
statement of profit or loss when the item is derecognized
(unless NAS 17 requires otherwise on a sale and
leaseback). Gains shall not be classified as revenue.

Intangible assets:

Basis of recognition

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Software is depreciated over its estimated useful life.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset
is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.
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Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized
only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All
other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization of Intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the period of services to be rendered. Amortization
is recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over
the useful economic life. Amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each reporting date.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and they
are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Amortization expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in
the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible asset.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to write down the cost of intangible assets to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives
mentioned above.

De-recognition of Intangible assets
An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
it. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of such
intangible assets is included in the statement of profit or
loss when the item is de-recognized.

Impairment of Intangible assets

An impairment review is performed whenever there is an
indication of impairment. When the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in
the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery
and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital
work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant
asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
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2.4 Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet
Approach on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences, except;

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilized except where the deferred tax asset relating
to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the
statement of profit orloss is recognized outside statement



N

LIC

2.5

of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset,
if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Financial Assets:
As per NFRS 9 Financial instrument are classified into
following types;

i) Financial instrument measured at amortized cost

ii) Financial instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

iii) Financial instrument at fair value through profit and
loss

iv) Other financial Asset

Financial instrument measured at amortized cost

A financial asset at amortized cost includes those
financial assets that are held by the entity for long term
purpose and intend to hold till maturity.

Company has presented interest bearing deposits, loans,
debentures and government bonds at amortized cost.

The interest rate of deposits, loans, debentures and
government bonds shown atamortized cost is considered
as effective interest rate.

The asset is measured at the amount recognized at initial
recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortization of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount, and any
loss allowance. Difference between amortized cost of
staff loan and book value of staff loan at balance sheet
date has not been recognized in investment income as
interest concession element is equal to staff cost and
gets reversed in the same year.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized
cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred,
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original

b)
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effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the loss is recorded in the statement of
Profit or Loss.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is
included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
The impairment assessment is performed at each
reporting date.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and that decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Financial Asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Recognition of Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) financial investments include equity shares.
Equity investments classified as fair value through OCI
are those that are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated at fair value through Statement of Profit
or Loss.

After the initial measurement, FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale reserve. Dividends earned whilst
FVTOCI are recognized in the statement of profit or loss
as ‘Investment income’ when the right of the payment
has been established. When the asset is de-recognized,
cumulative gain or loss is in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income is transferred to
the statement of profit or loss. If the asset is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative loss is recognized in
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the statement of profit or loss and removed from the
available-for-sale reserve.

Impairment of financial assets at fair value through OCI
If a fair value through OCI financial asset is impaired,
an amount comprising the difference between its costs
(net of any principal repayment and amortization) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income, is transferred
from equity to the statement of profit or loss. Reversals
in respect of equity instruments classified as fair value
through OCI are not recognized in the statement of profit
or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments
classified at fair value through OCI are reversed through
the statement of profit or loss, if the increase in the
fair value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment losses were
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial instrument at fair value through profit and
loss

Recognition of financial instrument at fair value
through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and those designated
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss. Investments typically bought with the intention to
sell in the near future are classified as held for trading.
Attributable transaction costs are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss as incurred. These investments
are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are re-measured at fair value.

Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘fair value gains
and losses’ in the statement of profit or loss. Interest is
accrued and presented in ‘investment income’. Dividend
income is recorded in the ‘investment income' when
the right to the receiveis established. The Company will
evaluate its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (held for trading) by considering whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate.

For investments to be designated as at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss, the following criteria must be met;

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains
or losses on a different basis.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position
can be derived from active markets, they are derived
from observable market data. However, if this is not
available, judgment is required to establish fair values.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the
company are recognized at fair value. Fair value of the
financial assets are determined on the basis of fair value
hierarchy.

Determination of fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded on the statement of

financial position for which there is no observable
market price are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of mathematical
techniques. The inputs to these models are derived from
observable market data where possible, but if this is not
available, judgment is required to establish their fair
values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

e Level 1: Listed/quoted (adjusted) prices in active
markets for identical instruments are available.
The Company measures the fair value of a financial
instrument using active listed/quoted prices or dealer
price quotations and managers buying price. A financial
instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service
or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis.

e |evel 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category
includes instruments valued using; quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.

¢ Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not
based on observable market data. Non-market observable
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input means that fair values are determined, in whole or
in part, using a valuation technique (model) based on
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same
instrument, nor are they based on available market data.

Other Financial Asset

Remaining Financial Asset other than financial asset
at amortized cost, financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial asset at fair value
through profit & loss and cash & cash equivalent is
categorized as other financial asset

Impairment of other Financial Asset

Company assesses recoverability of other financial asset
and when it becomes doubtful for the recovery, company
impair these financial assets as bad debt.

De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition is the removal of a previously recognized
financial asset (or financial liability) from an entity’s
statement of financial position. In general, NFRS 9
criteria for de-recognition of a financial asset aim to
answer the question whether an asset has been sold and
should be derecognized or whether an entity obtained a
kind of financing against this asset and simply a financial
liability should be recognized.

De-recognition criteria in NFRS 9 should be applied to a
part of an asset if, and only if, the part being considered
for de-recognition meets one of the following three
conditions:

1. The part comprises only specifically identified cash
flows from a financial asset or a group of similar
financial assets.

2. The part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro
rata) share of the cash flows from a financial asset or
a group of similar financial assets.

3. The part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro
rata) share of specifically identified cash flows from a
financial.

Offsetting of the Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities:

Afinancial asset and a financial liability shall be offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position only when an entity:

a) Currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts; and intends either to settle on a

2.7

2.8

2.9

18™ ANNUAL REPORT
Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

b) Entities are required to offset financial assets and
financial liabilities in the balance sheet when the
criteria for setoff are met and to qualify for offsetting,
all of the counterparties to the contract must currently
have a legally enforceable right of setoff.

Current Tax Assets and Current Tax Liabilities:
Current tax assets of the company include the amount
of advance income tax paid to the Inland Revenue
department and tax deducted at source (TDS).
Similarly,current tax liabilities include the tax provision
made for the year.

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are shown
in net in statement of financial position of the company
as there exist condition to setoff both of the assets and
liabilities as permitted by NAS 12 (Income Taxes) Para 71.

Other Non-Financial Asset:
Every asset other than financial asset is non- fi-
nancial asset.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and in hand, short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
net of any provision and money put in Banks or Financial
Institution in Call deposit.

2.10 Insurance Contract Liabilities:

Provision for unexpired risk reserve

As per regulatory requirement the insurance company
needs to create 50% of except (OE Single Premium)
Insurance and Micro Term Insurance and ratio of period
lapsed between policy issue date to balance sheet and
total policy period. However, NFRS 4 requires valuation
of liabilities of the company as per actuaries and creates
liabilities higher among the regulatory liabilities or the
liabilities as per NFRS 4.

As per the requirement of NFRS 4 Unearned Premium
Reserve (UPR) is calculated by actuaries as per Insurance
Act Provisions.
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Unearned premium reserve is calculated by actuaries on
gross premium income and as per actuarial valuation
unearned premium reserve is equal to the unexpired risk
reserve.

Provision for unexpired risk represents premiums
received for risks that have not yet expired. Generally,
the reserve is released over the term of the contract and
is recognized as premium income.

As required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the
Company performs a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) in
respect of Life Insurance contract liabilities consisting
of Life Fund, amount available for appropriation for
shareholders through Profit or Loss Account and Bonus
to policy holders as suggested by Actuary according to
provisions of Insurance Act.

Provision for gross outstanding claims

As per regulatory requirement the insurance company
needs to create 115% of opening outstanding claim as
liabilities for provision for outstanding claims. Gross
provision for outstanding claim is separated from the
hundred and fifteen percentage. Actuarial valuation
is required for the calculation of liabilities for gross
outstanding claim provision.

Life insurance contract liabilities are recognized when
insurance contracts are entered into and premiums are
charged. These liabilities are known as the outstanding
claims provision, which are based on the estimated
ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the
reporting date, whether reported or not, together with
related claims handling costs.

The liability is discounted according to procedures and
methodology mentioned in Section 6 of Actuary report.
The Liability is derecognized when the contract expires,
is discharged or is cancelled.

Liability adequacy test
NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine
their business liabilities as per Actuary valuation.

A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) as prescribed in
NFRS 4 is similar to Actuary Valuation as per existing
valuation framework under the Insurance Act 2049 and
was performed by M/S K A Pandit, Mumbai, a firm of
professional actuaries as at Ashad31, 2076 as required
by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts in order to assess
the adequacy of the carrying amount of the provision
for unexpired risk, outstanding claim, Appropriation
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for shareholders and Life Fund. The valuation is based
on actuarial methods prescribed in Insurance Act and
directives.

Ateach reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired
risk and carrying amount of Life Fund, appropriation for
shareholders and Bonus to policyholders and a liability
adequacy test is performed to determine whether there
is any overall excess/ shortage of Life Fund Balance. This
calculation uses current estimates of future contractual
cash flows after taking account of the investment return
expected to generate from investments. These estimates
show that the carrying amount of the Life Fund and
unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss by transfer
of amount from premium and income earned from
Investments.

2.11 Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. Expense
relating to any provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounting using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

2.12 Revenue Recognition Policy of company:

The company applies accrual basis of accounting for
the recognition of revenue which includes the fees and
commission income and other income of insurance
company as per the requirement of the NAS 18. Premium
is recognized on cash basis as per regulatory Directive.

2.13 Gross premiums on insurance contracts:

NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, requires contracts written
by insurer to be classified as either ‘Insurance contracts’
or ‘Investment contracts’ depending in the level of
insurance risk transferred.
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Insurance contracts are those contracts when the
Company (the insurer) has accepted significantinsurance
risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing
to compensate the policyholders, if a specified uncertain
future event (the insured event) adversely affects the
policyholders.

As a general guideline, the Company determines whether
it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits
paid with benefits payable, if the insured event did not
occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial
risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant financial risk and no significant insurance
risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change
in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commaodity price, foreign exchange
rate, index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index
or other variables, provided in the case of a non-financial
variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the
contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance
contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk
reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights
and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment
contracts can, however, be reclassified as insurance
contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes
significant.

All the products sold by the Company are insurance
contracts. Therefore, classified as insurance contracts
under the NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. Thus, the
Company does not have any investment contracts within
its product portfolio as at the reporting date.

Revenue recognition of gross written premium

Gross premium (GP) represents the premium charged
by the Company to underwrite risks. GP is accumulated
by company for use to reinsurance its risks and park
the fund in designed assets category as prescribed in
Insurance Act for Life applicable for Life Insurance
Companies and Actuary determines how much of
revenue from Premium to be recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss for appropriation to Shareholders, bonus
to Policyholders and transfer to Insurance Fund.
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2.14 Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance

contracts:

Recognition of premium ceded to reinsurers

Life Insurance Company’s gross reinsurance premium
expense is reduced from Gross Insurance premium
received during the year and presented as net in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.15 Interest income:

Revenue recognition of interest income
Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss as it accrues.

In case of Loan to agents, since loan repayment period
is dependent on volume of business arranged by agent
and commission accrued thereon, effective interest rate
method has not been applied in those loans.

In case of employee loans, effective interest rate has been
taken as 10% and differential interest than recovered
from employees is considered as benchmark rate for
effective interest

2.16 Dividend Recognition policy:

Dividend income shall be recognized when right to
receive dividend is established.

2.17 Staff expenses:

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus
or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.18 Retirement Benefits Obligations:

i) Defined Contribution Plans

A Defined Contribution Plan includes post-employment
benefit plan under which an Insurance pays fixed
contribution into a separate Institution (or own fund)
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee
services in the current and prior periods, as defined
in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee
Benefits).

Employer & Employee both, contributes 10% of the
basic salary.



70

18™ ANNUAL REPORT
Life Jnsurance Corporation (Nepai) Ltd.

ii) Defined Benefit Plans
Provision for Defined Benefit Plan are provided as per
NAS 19 based on Actuarial Valuation Report.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly, staff
gratuity and leave encashment has been considered as
defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards
—NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

a) Gratuity
NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations for Gratuity.
Actuarial valuations have been carried out to determine
the amount of Gratuity. The basis for gratuity calculation
is as below:

Year of Service Basis of Gratuity
Up to 14 Years 1 Month of Basic Salary
15-19 Years 1.5 Month of Basic Salary

20 and above 2 Month of Basic Salary

Actuarial Assumptions for Gratuity and Leave
Encashment:

Particulars FY 2018/19 FY 201718

Discount rate (%) 6.5% 6%

Salary escalation rate 5% 5%

Expected return on 6.5% 6%

Plan Assets

Mortality Nepali Assured | Nepali Assured
Lives Mortality | Lives Mortality

(2009) (2009)
Withdrawal rate 2% 2%
Retirement age 58 Year which- | 58 Year which-

ever is earlier ever is earlier

Description FY 201819  FY 2017/18
Present Value of Obligation 41,434,387 | 36,898,364
Plan Assets 37,019,293 | 29,098,001
Funded Status Deficit/ 4,415,094 7,800,363
(Excess)

Reconciliation of liability/(Asset)in the Balance Sheet

Description FY 2018/19  FY 2017/18
Opening Net Liability 7,800,363 7,500,301
Expenses Recognized in 6,570,581 6,774,875
statement of P&L

Expenses Recognized in OCl | (2,155,487) 5,003,917
(Employer Contribution) (7,800,363) | (11,478,730)
Net Liability/(Asset) 4,415,094 7,800,363
Recognized in Balance

Sheet

<

Net Interest cost for Next year
FY 2018/19
41,434,387

Description FY 2017/18

Present Value of Benefit 36,898,364
Obligation at the end of the

period

(Fair value of plan asset at
the end of the period)

(37,019,293) | (29,098,001)

Net liability/Asset at the 4,415,094 7,800,363
end of the period
Interest cost 2,693,235 2,213,902
(Interest Income) (2,406,254) | (1,745,880)
Net Interest cost for the 286,981 468,022
next year
E’:gfu"l‘t“’,d CashFlowson — cyop1819  Fy 2017718
Year 1 1,545,674 1,674,327
Year 2 959,358 8,005,590
Year 3 1,040,192 8,413,358
Year 4 1,162,301 911,015
Year 5 3,371,445 1,012,802
Year 6to 10 10,130,283 8,172,087
b) Leave

NAS 19 requires actuarial valuations for Leave
encashment. Actuarial valuations have been carried out
to determine the amount of Accumulated leave.

Valuation Summary- Leave Encashment

FY 2018/19
16,155,482

Description

FY 2017/18

Present Value of Obligation 13,511,814

Funded Status of Leave Benefit; Non- Funded

Assumptions for Actuarial Valuation is same in case of
Leave Encashment that of Gratuity.

2.19 Leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a
lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date and requires an
assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets)
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset
(or assets), even if that asset is (or those assets are) not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Insurance company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance
lease or an operating lease. Leases that do not transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
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of an asset to the Insurance Company are classified as
operating leases.

In para 33 of NAS -17 lease payments under an operating
lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payments
to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase
in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’'s expected inflationary cost increases. If
payments to the lessor vary because of factors other
than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

Payment made under operating leases are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss . The lease rental is adjusted
for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease expense which the company
believes is more representative than the straight line
method in line with para 33 of NAS-17.

Company has no any lease arrangement in the nature of
Financial Lease.

2.20 Segment Reporting:

The company has determined following business as
separate segment;

) Endowment

) Anticipated Endowment
) Modified Endowment
)
)

QO

Whole Life Policy

Term Insurance Policy
Special Term Policy
Endowment Single Premium
Single Premium O.E

Micro Term Insurance

D O O T

S D Q
= =

=

Segment Reporting includes the total profit distribution
of the company to all its line of business. The premium
income, reinsurance premium expense, gross claim and
claim ceded to reinsurer, outstanding claim, other direct
expenses and income, fee and commission income,
investment income, other operating and administrative
expenses are allocated to each line of business as per
revenue account as prepared in existing GAAP.
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2.21 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and

Assumptions:

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards including
Nepal Accounting Standards requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.

2.22 Liability Adequacy Test (LAT):

The accounting policy for liability testing including
the frequency and nature of testing Response:

The liability is computed as per the actuarial valuation
directive for life insurance business 2065. The statutory
liability is computed on a yearly basis, at the end of every
financial year.

The cash flow considered

The various benefits considered include Death Benefit,
Survival Benefit and Maturity Benefit. Cash flows are
projected in accordance with the product specifications
for each plan.

Deathrelated cash flowsare projected for protectionplans,
whereas both death and maturity benefit related cash
flows are projected for endowment products. Similarly,
survival benefits and other benefits are projected in
accordance with the product specifications. The credit of
reinsurance is considered in the computation of reserves
by allowing for cash flows pertaining to reinsurance at
policy level. Reinsurance premiums are considered as
outgo and recovery from reinsurer on expected claims
are considered as income while calculating the reserve
for each policy.

This information is as provided in Section 6 of the
Actuarial Valuation Report.

Valuation method and assumptions

The valuation method and assumptions are provided in
Section 6 and Section 7 of the Actuarial Valuation Report.
An extract of the same is given below:
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Method of Valuation

The amount of long-term liabilities has been determined
at a policy level prospectively using a Gross Premium
Valuation methodology as specified by the Actuarial
Valuation Directives 2076 for Life Insurance Business
ofBeema Samiti.

For the valuation as at 16thJuIy 2019, the reserves are
computed using the actuarial software, Prophet. The
software projects the cash-flows at monthly intervals.

Reserves for Participating and Non- Participating

Business

® Reserves are computed using gross premium
methodology. The amounts of long term liabilities
have been determined separately for each contract
using a prospective calculation by projecting future
cash flows. Hence the reserves are value of benefits
plus value of future expenses after allowing for
expense inflation less value of office premium, all
computed at a policy level.

e The various benefits considered include Death
Benefit, Survival Benefit and Maturity Benefit.
Cash flows are projected in accordance with the
product specifications for each plan. Maturity
and death related cash flows are projected for
savings and protection plans relevantly. Similarly,
survival benefits and other benefits are projected in
accordance with the product specifications.

® For participating products, accrued and vested
bonus as at date of valuation is incorporated into
the computation and projection of the benefit cash
flows — death and maturity benefits.

e The liability so obtained for each policy, is floored
to the surrender value or if no surrender value is
applicable, is subject to zeroization at policy level as
at date of valuation.

® Savings policies acquiring paid-up status are treated
as single premium endowment policies with reduced
sum assured and vested bonus, if any. In case of
protection policies acquiring paid-up status, only
the death related cash-flows based on reduced sum
assured and policy expenses are projected.

® The credit of reinsurance is considered in the
computation of reserves by allowing cash flows
pertaining to reinsurance at policy level. Reinsurance
premiums are considered as outgo and recovery
from reinsurer on expected reinsurance claims
are considered as income while calculating the

Y LIC

reserve for each policy. The reserves, gross and
net of reinsurance are computed, and the reserve
net of reinsurance is considered for the purpose of
reporting.

Options and Guarantees available for Individual and

Group Business

® There are no explicit options and guarantees in the
products.

e For products with guaranteed additions, the
guaranteed additions vested as on payment date
(death or maturity) have been considered as part of
liability. Future guaranteed benefits are modelled to
be payable when they vest.

Reserves for Optional Riders
o Reserves are held for riders such as Accident Cover,
Waiver of Premium and Term Cover.

e Forall the riders, a provision equivalent to Unearned
Premium Reserve method on a 1/365 basis isheld.

Provision for Revival of LapsedPolicies

o The Gross Premium Valuation methodology is used
to compute mathematical reserve for all lapsed
policies (that have not acquired paid-up value) and
assuming they are in-force.

® Aprovision is held towards the liability that may arise
from the policies that may revive in the future. As
per circular 04/070/71 No.2543 dated 2070/09/25,
issued by Beema Samiti, lapsed policies can be
revived at any time irrespective of when the policy
had lapsed. Therefore, the provision is held towards
all the lapsed policies within the policyterm.

® The provision equal to 5% (PY 10%) of the reserve
is held, based on the expected revival rate of the
Company. A revival rate of 1% is observed in the
year 2018-19 and an additional margin of prudence
is considered in setting this provision. The revival
experience may change each year depending on the
management actions to improve the persistency
and taking into account any margins for prudence.
The Company shall monitor the revival experience
on a regular basis and inform of any change to
suchexperience.

EMR Provision

e There is an additional mortality risk in respect of
policies which are rated up on account of occupation
hazard, over/underweight, smoking history,
previous/current health condition or geographical
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conditions. Extra premiums are charged for the
higher mortality/morbidity risks on such policies.

® The extra premium received is held as provision
towards extra mortalityreserve.

Catastrophe Reserve
A global provision has been held towards meeting claims
arising as a result of any catastrophic event.

Contingency Reserve
Aglobal provision has been made to cover any unforeseen
events and issues.

Cost ofBonus
A provision has been held to support the cost of bonus
declared as at the date of valuation.

Reserves for One Year Renewable Group Term
Business (Plans 801 /851)

For the one-year renewable group term products,
Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR) method using
1/365th method has been used for valuing liabilities.

Smoothing Reserves
A provision has been held for smoothening of future
bonuses to be declared to policyholders.

Assumptions

The assumptions used in the Gross Premium Valuation

(GPV) basis are realistic (best estimates) with a margin
for adverse deviation. The following assumptions have
been made in the valuation conducted as on 16th
July2019:

Valuation Assumptions As on 16™July, 2019

Mortality 100% of NALM 2009 Table
Rate of interest

6% per annum

Expenses Commissions | As actual

Fixed First Year:

Expense NRs. 2 per policy for Foreign
Employment

NRs. 10 per policy for Term
plans

NRs. 1200 per policy for all
other plans

Renewal:

NRs. 2 per policy for Foreign
Employment

NRs. 10 per policy for Term
plans

NRs. 500 per policy for all
other plans
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Premium First Year:
Related NA for Foreign employment
Expense as it is Single Premium

8% (PY 5.50%) of premium
for Term plans

17% (PY 5%) of premium for
all other plans

Renewal:

NA for Foreign employment
as itis Single

Premium

1.5% (PY 2.50%) of premium
for Term plans

1.5% (PY 5%) of premium for
all other plans

Sum Assured | First Year - 0.033% of the
Related sum assured

Renewal — Nil

Expense Inflation | 4.5% p.a

Future Bonus 10 Per 1000
SA (PY NIL)

Thisis the statutory reporting basis whichisinaccordance
with points 14,15 and 16 of Section 3 Directive 8(3) of
Aarthik Lekhajokha (2065) issued by the Beema Samiti.

a. The discounting policy

As mentioned above and stated in Section 6 of the
Actuarial Valuation Report, the relevant cash flows for
each policy are discounted on a monthly basis in the
actuarial software, Prophet, considering the valuation
rate of interest.

b. Aggregation practices

It may be noted that the reserves are computed separately
for each policy. The results may then be presented by
product, policy status etc. The results presented in the
valuation report are at the product level.
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CORPORATE OFFICE & BRANCHES

Corporate Office
PO Box No: 21905
4th Floor, Star Mall, Putalisadak

Kathmandu, Nepal
Phone: 01-4012613, 4012614
Fax: 977-1-4012615

Branch Offices

KATHMANDU BRANCH
1st Floor, Bhim Plaza Naxal
Kathmandu, Nepal

Phone: 01-4415951

BIRATNAGAR BRANCH
Bhanu Tole, Biratnagar-14, Nepal
Phone: 021-532772

POKHARA BRANCH
Prithvi Chowk - Nagdunga, Nepal
Phone: 061-539191

NEPALGUNJ BRANCH
Dhombajhee-7, Nepolgunj, Nepal
Phone: 081-526047

BUTWAL BRANCH
Traffic Chowk, Butwal-8, Nepal
Phone: 071-550392

BIRGUNJ BRANCH

Main Road, Adarsha Nagar
Chowk-15, Birgunj, Nepal
Phone: 051-522371
JANAKPUR BRANCH

Station Rood, Janakpur, Nepal
Phone: 041-526384

DHANGADI BRANCH
Dhangodi-3, Kailali, Nepal
Phone: 091-520802

MAHENDRANAGAR BRANCH
Mohendranagar-4, Nepal
Phone: 099-525304

BIRTAMOD BRANCH
Bhadropur Road, Birtamod-4 Nepal
Phone: 023-543404

NARAYANGHAT BRANCH
Pulchowk, Bharatpur, Nepal
Phone: 056-532501

LAHAN BRANCH
Lahan-8, Siraha, Nepal
Phone: 033-561976

BHAKTAPUR BRANCH
Gatthaghar, Bhaktapur, Nepal
Phone: 01-6635021

DANG BRANCH
Sahid Gate, Ghorahi, Dang, Nepal
Phone: 082-563190

LALITPUR BRANCH
Yappa Bhawan, Lalitpur, Nepal
Phone: 01-5009295

DAMAULI BRANCH
Vyas Municipality-10, Damauli, Nepal
Phone: 065-562507

BAGLUNG BRANCH
Mahendra Path, Baglung, Nepal
Phone: 068-522737

DADELDHURA BRANCH
Amargadi Nagar Palika-5
Tuphandanda, Dadeldhura,
Nepal Phone: 096-410053

GULMI BRANCH
Tamghas-1, Gulmi, Nepal
Phone: 079-520748

TERHATHUM BRANCH
Myaglung-1, Terhathum, Nepal
Phone: 026-460725

DHARAN BRANCH
Chhata Chowk, Dharan-4, Nepal
Phone: 025-526459

GAUR BRANCH
Gaur, Ward No. 1, Nepal
Phone: 055-521501

HETAUDA BRANCH

Kanti Rajpath, Radha Krishna
Bhowan, Hetauda, Nepal
Phone: 051-521055

MALANGWA BRANCH
Malangwa-9, Nepal
Phone: 046-521663
TAULIHAWA BRANCH

Kalika Tole, Taulihawa-3, Nepal
Phone: 076-560461

NAWALPARASI BRANCH
Ram Gram Nagarpalika-2
Nawalparasi, Nepal
Phone: 078-521030

TIKAPUR BRANCH

1st Floor, Kishan Co-operative
Bldg. Siddhartha Chowk,
Tikapur-9, Nepal

Phone: 091-561362

WALING BRANCH
Waling-3. Syanja. Nepal
Phone: 063-440653

JALESH WAR BRANCH
Ji.Bi.Sa. Road, Jaleshwor-5
Mahottari, Nepal

Phone: 044-521175

SURKHET BRANCH

Birendra chowk. Birendranagar-6
Surkhet, Nepal

Phone: 083-523127

GORKHA BRANCH
Haramtari, Gorkha-3, Nepal
Phone. 064-420190

RAJBIRAJ BRANCH
Main Road, Ward No. 3, Rajbiraj, Nepal
Phone: 031-523818

CHABAHIL BRANCH
Chucchepati, Chabahil,
Kathmandu, Nepal
Phone: 01-4481686

BANEPA BRANCH
Banepa-7, Kabhrepalanchok, Nepal
Phone: 011-663549

NEW BANESHWOR BRANCH
Block AL, All in One Mart,

New Baneshwor

Kathmandu, Nepal

Phone: 01-4620328

KALANKI & FE BRANCH
Kolanki-13, Kathmandu, Nepal
Phone: 01-4037477

ITAHARI BRANCH

Ward No. 6, Mahendra Rajmarga
Itahari, Nepal

Phone: 025-582487

PALPA BRANCH

Silkhan Tole-4, Palpa, Nepal
Phone. 075-521539

ILLAM BRANCH
Nikunj Path, Ward No. 7, lllam, Nepal
Phone: 027-521890

NUWAKOT BRANCH

Ward No. 4, Bidur Nagarpalika
Nuwakot, Nepal

Phone: 010-561905

BAITADI BRANCH
Dashrathchand Municipality-4,
Gothalapani, Baitadi, Nepal
Phone: 095-520455

DAMAK BRANCH
Damak-6, Jhapa, Nepal
Phone: 023-580915

CHAINPUR BRANCH
Chainpur, Sankhuwasabha-7, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222384

DHANKUTA BRANCH
Dhankuta Municipality-6,
Dhankuta, Nepal

Mob.: 9801222377

BARDIBAS BRANCH
Bardibas-1, Mahottari, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222379

SINDHULI BRANCH
Sindhuli Kamalamai NP-6,
Modi Bazar, Nepal

Mob.: 9801222381

SIDDHARTHANAGAR
BRANCH

Airport Road-6, Galla Mandi
Siddharthanagar, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222383

BARDIYA BRANCH

Gulariya Municipality-8, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222388

GAIGHAT BRANCH

Triyuga NP-3, Udayapur, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222378

NIJGADH BRANCH
Nijgadh-7, Bara

Mob.: 9801222385

LIC

KALAIYA BRANCH
Kalaiya Municipality-4 Nepal
Mob.: 9801222391

DHADING BRANCH
Dhading, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222386

BESISAHAR BRANCH
Bhimsensthan Municipality-7
Mob.: 9801222389

BAHRABISE BRANCH
Bahrabise Municipality-7, Nepal
Mob. 9801222387

PYUTHAN BRANCH
Pyuthan Municipality-2, Jumri, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222382

TULSIPUR BRANCH
Tulsipur-5 Gha, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222379

SALYAN BRANCH
Sarad Municipality, Ward No. 1
Shreenagar, Nepal
Mob.. 9801222376

KOHALPUR BRANCH
Kohalpur Municipality-11, Nepal
Mob.: 9801222380

LALBANDI BRANCH
Lalbandi NP-7 Sarlahi, Nepal
Mob.: 9801180420

LEKHNATH BRANCH
Pokhara-27, Lekhnath-Talchowk, Nepal
Mob.: 9801170998

KAWASOTI BRANCH
Kawasoti-2, Thanachowk
Nawalpur, Nepal

Mob.: 9801179796

BARDAGHAT BRANCH
Shivanagar colony
Bardaghat NP-4, Nepal
Mob.: 9801179805

CHANDRAUTA BRANCH
Shivaraj NP-5 kapilvastu, Nepal
Mob.: 9801180407
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